

EDUCATIONAL MEDIA MATERIALS SELECTION POLICY

The Florida State University Schools (FSUS) Library Media Center serves as a keystone for the curriculum needs of the school community while also promoting and providing for students' recreational reading. The Library Media Center assists students in becoming lifelong information seekers and ensures that they develop the skills to utilize information effectively through collaborative instruction and flexible access.

- I. Objectives of Selection - The primary objective of the Florida State University School's (FSUS) educational media center is to implement, enrich, and support the educational program of the school. The center shall provide a wide range of materials on all levels of difficulty, with diversity of appeal, and the representation of different points of view. The FSUS School Board asserts that the responsibility of the media center is to provide:
 - A. Instructional and supplemental materials that will enrich and support the curriculum, taking into consideration the varied interest, abilities, and maturity levels of the students being served.
 - B. Materials that will stimulate growth in factual knowledge, literary appreciation, aesthetic values, and ethical standards.
 - C. A background of information enabling students to make intelligent judgments in their daily life.
 - D. Materials on opposing sides of controversial issues in order that students may develop, under guidance, the practice of critical analysis of all media.
 - E. Materials representative of the many religious, ethnic, and cultural groups and their contributions to the heritage and culture of America and the world.
 - F. A comprehensive collection appropriate for the users of the media center placing principle above personal opinion and reason above prejudice in the selection of materials of the highest quality.
- II. Legal Responsibility for Selection. The School Board is legally responsible for all matters relating to the operation of the Florida State University Schools. The responsibility for the selection of educational materials, regardless of whether the book is purchased, donated, or otherwise made available to students is delegated to a school district employee who holds a valid educational media specialist certificate. School principals are responsible for overseeing compliance with school district procedures for selecting school library media center materials.

III. Parental Responsibility. Parents shall have the right to review materials in the media center and request that it be noted in the student's library record that the student not be allowed to check out certain materials.

IV. Criteria for Selection of Media Materials

A. The standards to determine the propriety of the educational materials shall be pursuant to Florida Statutes.

B. First consideration shall be given to the needs of the individual school based on knowledge of the curriculum, of the existing collection, and of the needs of children and youth. Requests from users of the collection, (i.e., administrators, faculty, parents, and students) shall be given high priority.

C. Materials shall be considered on the basis of accuracy of content, overall purpose, timeliness, importance of the subject matter, quality of the writing/production, readability and popular appeal, authoritativeness, comprehensiveness of material, reputation of the publisher/producer, reputation and significance of the author/artist/composer/producer, format and price.

D. In determining the suitability and value of the material included in the collection, consideration of the following elements must be given:

1. Religion - factual, unbiased material which represents all major religions.

2. Ideologies - factual information on any ideology or philosophy that exerts a strong force in society.

3. Sex Education - factual information, appropriate for the age group or related to the school curriculum.

4. Sex - pornographic, sensational, or titillating materials shall not be included.

5. Profanity - the fact that limited profanity appears in material shall not automatically disqualify a selection. However, care shall be taken to exclude materials using profanity in a lewd or detrimental manner and not in context with the material.

6. Science - factual information about medical and scientific knowledge, without any biased selection of facts.

- E. Gifts of media or money may be accepted with the understanding that their use or disposition shall be determined by those persons having the responsibility for acquisitions, according to the same selection criteria and procedures as purchased materials.

V. Procedures for Selection

- A. In selecting materials made available to students through the library media center, the school media specialist shall:

1. Consult with reputable, unbiased, professionally recognized reviewing periodicals and school community stakeholders (including, media staff, curriculum consultants, students, faculty, parents and community members).
2. Require that book selections meet the criteria set forth in s. 1006.40(3)(d), F.S.
3. The library media center collection will:
 - a. be based on reader interest;
 - b. support state academic standards and aligned curriculum;
and
 - c. support the academic needs of students and faculty.
4. When considering materials to be purchased, the media specialist shall follow these procedures:
 - a. Purchase materials which are outstanding and frequently used;
 - b. Periodically replace worn or missing items;
 - c. Withdraw out-of-date or unnecessary items from the collection or items required to be removed pursuant to subparagraph 2; and replaced by new and age appropriate materials,
 - d. Purchase materials in many types of format: digital, e-books, electronic, or print.
 - e. Examine sets of materials and materials acquired by subscription and purchase only material to fill a definite need.
5. Weeding is the process of removing materials from the library collection in a systematic, deliberate way, and is an ongoing part of collection management. The CREW Method is the system used to weed the library collection; CREW stands for Continuous Review, Evaluation, and Weeding. The main criteria used in the CREW method are:

M = Misleading (and/or factually inaccurate)

U = Ugly (worn and beyond mending or rebinding)

S = Superseded (by a truly new edition or by a much better book on the subject)

T = Trivial (of no discernible literary or scientific merit; usually of ephemeral interest at some time in the past)

I = Irrelevant to the needs and interests of your community

E=The material or information may be obtained expeditiously Elsewhere through interlibrary loan, reciprocal borrowing, or in electronic format.

- B. The FSUS elementary school must publish on the school website a list of all materials maintained in the school library media center or required as a part of a school or grade-level reading list.

VI. Challenged Materials. Library materials deemed by some persons to be objectionable may be considered by others to have sound educational value. Any concerned parent, district resident or employee of the district may request reconsideration of school library media; however, the challenged material shall not be removed from circulation during the reconsideration process. When a complaint is made, the following procedure shall be followed:

- A. The library media specialist shall discuss the matter informally with the complainant explaining the selection procedures for library media materials. If the complainant accepts the explanation given by the media specialist, the reconsideration process concludes.
- B. If the explanation fails to resolve the objection, the principal will ask the complainant initiating the challenge to file, within two weeks, a formal written objection by completing a "Request for Reconsideration of Library Media" form which must reflect that the complainant has read the material in full. Failure to do so results in the conclusion of the reconsideration process.
- C. Upon receipt of the completed form "Request for Reconsideration of Library Media," the principal shall forward copies to the appropriate personnel on the School-level Review Committee (a committee of teachers, educational media specialists and parents of the school).
- D. The challenged material shall not be removed immediately; however, such materials shall not be available for student use pending a final decision.
- E. The challenged material shall be read and re-evaluated by the committee, considering the specific objections raised.

- F. The School-level Review Committee, in carrying out its assigned function, shall:
1. Read, view or listen to the material in its entirety;
 2. Check general acceptance of the material by reading reviews and consulting recommended lists;
 3. Determine the extent to which the material supports the curriculum;
 4. Complete the "Checklist for Reconsideration of Library Media," judging the material for its strength and value as a whole and not in part; and
 5. Forward, within fifteen (15) working days, a written recommendation to the Director.
- G. The complainant shall be informed in writing concerning the school-level committee's decision.
- H. If the complainant disagrees with the decision rendered by the school-level committee, a written appeal may be filed with the FSUS School Board within 15 working days. Failure to do so results in the conclusion of the reconsideration process.
- I. The School Board shall consider the decision of the School-level Review Committee and any other appropriate documentation (i.e. meeting summaries, material reviews, etc.). The decision of the School Board regarding appropriateness of a particular library media material will be considered final.
- J. The Director will inform the complainant and the school's media specialist of the School Board's decision to retain or remove the challenged material.
- K. Library Media materials in question can only be removed from circulation and/or used in the school district through the procedures of this policy.

STATUTORY AUTHORITY: 1001.41, 1001.42, F.S.

LAW(S) IMPLEMENTED: 1000.21, 1001.43, 1006.28, 1006.34(2)(b), 1006.40 F.S.

HISTORY: ADOPTED: _____ REVISION DATE(S): _____
FORMERLY:

FSUS Request for Reconsideration of Instructional Material Form

This form is to be submitted by any district resident(s), employee(s), or student(s), requesting the reconsideration of a curriculum-related material. ***For an instructional material item to be reconsidered, this form must be completely filled out and returned to the office of the FSUS principal.***

Title of Work _____

Author/Producer _____

Description of Material _____

Location of Material _____

Request initiated by _____

Address: _____

Daytime Telephone: _____

Complainant represents: (circle one) himself/herself Organization _____

To what material do you object? Please be specific. _____

Did you read/view the material in its entirety? ____ Yes ____ No

If not, what portion(s)? _____

What do you believe to be the theme/content of this material? _____

After conferring with the appropriate faculty member, what did you understand to be the intended objective of this material? _____

What do you believe might be the result of students viewing/reading this material/work?

For what age group would you recommend this material? _____

What educational value does this material have? _____

Are you aware of the evaluation of this material by critics or experts in the field?

What is your desired outcome of this reconsideration process? _____

Signature of Complainant _____

Date _____

Appendix B

Checklist for FSUS Educational Material Review Committee

Date _____

Title in Question _____

Copyright Date of Title in Question _____

Author _____

Purpose:

What is the overall purpose of the material? _____

Is the purpose accomplished? _____ Yes _____ No

Authenticity:

Is the information authored or otherwise sourced? _____ Yes _____ No

What is the reputation and significance of the author and publisher/producer in the field?

Is the material up-to-date? _____ Yes _____ No

Are the information sources well documented? _____ Yes _____ No

Are translations and retelling faithful to the original? _____ Yes _____ No

Appropriateness:

Does the material promote the educational goals and objectives of the curriculum?

_____ Yes _____ No

Is the material appropriate to the level of instruction intended? _____ Yes _____ No

Are the illustrations appropriate to the subject and age levels? _____ Yes _____ No

Content:

Is the content of this material well presented by providing adequate scope, range, depth, and continuity? _____ Yes _____ No

Does this material present information not otherwise available? _____ Yes _____ No

Does this material give a new dimension or direction to the subject? _____ Yes _____ No

Does the material give a realistic picture of life as it is now? _____ Yes _____ No

Is factual information part of the story and is it presented accurately? _____ Yes _____ No

Are concepts presented appropriate to the ability and maturity of the potential reader?

_____ Yes _____ No

Do characters speak in a language true to the period and section of the country in which they live? _____ Yes _____ No

Is there a preoccupation with sex, violence, cruelty, brutality, and aberrant behavior that would make this material inappropriate for children? _____ Yes _____ No

If there is use of offensive language, it is appropriate to the purpose of the text for children? _____ Yes _____ No

If there are graphics or photographic reproductions, are they appropriate to the purpose of the text for children? _____ Yes _____ No

Does the material give a broader understanding of human behavior without stressing differences of class, race, color, sex, education, religion, or philosophy in any way?

_____ Yes _____ No

Is the material well-written or produced? _____ Yes _____ No

Does the material make a significant contribution to the history of literature or ideas?

_____ Yes _____ No

EDUCATIONAL MEDIA MATERIALS SELECTION**(1) Objectives of Selection**

The primary objective of the school's educational media center is to implement, enrich, and support the educational program of the school. The center shall provide a wide range of materials on all levels of difficulty, with diversity of appeal, and the representation of different points of view. The Director asserts that the responsibility of the media center is to provide:

- (a) Materials that will enrich and support the curriculum, taking into consideration the varied interests, abilities, and maturity levels of the students served.
- (b) Materials that will stimulate growth in factual knowledge, literary appreciation, aesthetic values, and ethical standards.
- (c) A background of information enabling students to make intelligent judgments in their daily life.
- (d) Materials representative of the many religious, ethnic, and cultural groups and their contributions to the American heritage.
- (e) A comprehensive collection appropriate for the users of the media center which places principle above personal opinion and reason above prejudice in the selection of materials of the highest quality.

(2) Criteria for Selection of Educational Materials

- (a) The standards to determine the propriety of the educational materials shall be pursuant to Florida Statutes.
- (b) First consideration shall be given to the needs of the school based on knowledge of the curriculum, of the existing collection, and the of the needs of children and youth. Requests from users of the collection (i.e., administrators, faculty, parents, and students) shall be given high priority.

- ~~(c) Materials shall be considered on the basis of accuracy of content, overall purpose, timeliness, importance of the subject matter, quality of the writing/production, readability and popular appeal, authoritativeness, comprehensiveness of the material, reputation of the author/artist/composer/producer, etc.; and format and price.~~
- ~~(d) Gifts of media or money shall be accepted with the understanding that those persons having the responsibility for acquisitions will use the same selection criteria to determine their use or disposition and procedures as purchased materials.~~

(3) Procedures for Selection

- ~~(a) In selecting materials for purchase, the school media specialist shall evaluate the existing collection and shall consult with:~~
- ~~1. Reputable, unbiased, professionally prepared selection aids such as those published by companies generally accepted by the educational media profession.~~
 - ~~2. Media staff, curriculum consultants, faculty, students and community representatives.~~
 - ~~3. Media committee appointments by the Director to serve in an advisory capacity in the selection of materials.~~
- ~~(b) In specific areas, the media specialist shall follow these procedures:~~
- ~~1. Purchase materials that are outstanding and frequently used.~~
 - ~~2. Replace periodically worn or missing basic items;~~
 - ~~3. Withdraw out of date or unnecessary items from the collection; and~~
 - ~~4. Examine sets of materials and materials acquired by subscription and purchase to fill a definite need.~~

STATUTORY AUTHORITY:

1001.41; 1001.42, F.S.

LAWS IMPLEMENTED:

1006.28; 1001.43; 1006.34(2)(B), F.S.

HISTORY:

ADOPTED:

REVISION DATE(S): 12/8/09

FORMERLY: 3.09

Florida State University Schools



Grades K-12

Deleted: 20221-20232

LEGAL FOUNDATION OF THE STUDENT PROGRESSION PLAN

SECTION 1008.25, FLORIDA STATUTES, STUDENT PROGRESSION

Florida State University Schools (FSUS) has established a comprehensive program for pupil progression, which shall be based upon an evaluation of each pupil's performance, including how well the student masters the performance standards approved by the State Board of Education. FSUS's curriculum, instruction and assessment system shall be aligned with Florida standards. Courses, instruction and performance standards will address the skills and competencies that a student must learn in order to graduate from high school. (F.S. 1008.25)

Deleted:

Deleted: s

The Student Progression Plan is revised and updated annually, based upon input from school personnel, current law and State Board Rule changes. This plan gives consideration to the best interest of individual students and complies with the Florida Statutes and Florida Department of Education directives. All school level instructional personnel, parents, and students are encouraged to study the requirements of Florida State University Schools Student Progression Plan, with the understanding that the legislative intent is to raise the quality of education in Florida. Though every effort is made to address state statute and federal mandates, it is possible that answers may not be found in this document. These omissions are not to be construed as Florida State University Schools granting permission for issues not covered in the Student Progression Plan. Clarification on these types of issues are available through school principals as well as from district staff.

Florida State University School's comprehensive program for student progression shall reflect an effort to identify students at each grade level in grades K-12 who have attained a cumulative grade point average of 2.0 or below. The program shall further include provisions for assisting such students to achieve the 2.0 cumulative grade point average required for graduation pursuant to Section 1003.43.

Grades K-12 will offer instruction for English Language Learners (ELL) which complies with the 1990 LULAC/META Consent Decree and with the District ELL Plan which is both approved by the District School Board and the Florida State Department of Education. No student will be denied appropriate use of his/her primary language. (FS 233.058, SBR 6A.6A 0908(3) FAC).

Each student must participate in the statewide assessment program as required by FS 1008.25(4).

The Student Progression Plan is designed to support the philosophy and goals of the FSUS School Board.

The Pembroke Pines-Florida State University Charter Elementary School follows Broward County Public School's Policy 6000.1 Student Progression Plan when possible. If an assessment is unavailable, the school will align with the pupil progression plan of FSUS.

Note: As policy changes midyear, or updates are needed, the following chart regarding Substantive Changes will be modified accordingly.

SUBSTANTIVE CHANGES

Section	Change	Board Approved
Promotion Grades K-5	Update promotion scores based on new standards testing Update exemption section to reflect current law/rule	
Promotion Grades K-5	Mid-year promotion is based on DOE rule/guidelines. Principal will promote as needed following those guidelines.	
Elementary: Curriculum Provisions	Removed 90-minute reading block requirement	
Elementary: Curriculum Provisions	Clarified acceleration language and removed charts	
Bright Futures	Added 100 workhour options	

Educational Acronyms

<i>Acronym</i>	<i>Meaning</i>
CSIT	Child Study Team
EOC	End Of Course Assessment
ENOBLES	Enhanced New Opportunity for Better Life in Education for Students with Disabilities
ELA	English Language Arts
ELL	English Language Learner
ESOL	English Speakers of Other Languages
FAPE	Free Appropriate Public Education
FCAT	Florida Comprehensive Assessment Test
F.S.	Florida Statute
FAST	Florida Assessment of Student Thinking
GED	General Education Diploma
GPA	Grade Point Average
IEP	Individual Education Plan
MTSS	Multi-Tiered System of Support
NGSSS	Next Generation Sunshine State Standards
NRT	Norm Reference Test
PERT	Postsecondary Education Readiness Test
PMIP	Progress Monitoring Plan
READ	Reading Enhancement and Acceleration Development
RTI	Response to Intervention
SIT	School Intervention Team
SPP	Student Progression Plan
TABE	Test of Adult Basic Education
TIEP	Transitional Individual Education Plan

Deleted: SA
Deleted: Standards Assessment

Table of Contents

Section 1008.25, Florida Statutes, requires each district school board to establish a comprehensive program for student progression that includes standards for evaluating how well each student masters the performance standards. The plan must also contain specific district standards of performance for student progression in reading, writing, science and mathematics for each grade level. Other areas that must be addressed are: remediation plans, promotion criteria, retention criteria, and levels of performance based upon district assessment.

To assist in navigating the **Student Progression Plan** (which may be found in its entirety on the school’s website www.fsus.fsu.edu), the following table indicates the pages for each topic. To assist with understanding the plan, a list of education acronyms and their meanings is provided.

Contents

<u>LEGAL FOUNDATION OF THE STUDENT PROGRESSION PLAN.....</u>	<u>1</u>
<u>TABLE OF CONTENTS</u>	<u>4</u>
<u>SECTION 1: GENERAL K-12 INFORMATION</u>	<u>7</u>
<u>ENROLLMENT AND ADMISSIONS</u>	<u>7</u>
<u>Transfers from Out-Of-State Schools</u>	<u>7</u>
<u>Transfers from Home Education Programs and Private Schools.....</u>	<u>7</u>
<u>Transfers From Out-Of-State Schools.....</u>	<u>7</u>
<u>Placement of Transfer Students.....</u>	<u>8</u>
<u>Evidence of Immunization.....</u>	<u>8</u>
<u>Evidence of a Medical Examination</u>	<u>8</u>
<u>Married or Pregnant Students.....</u>	<u>9</u>
<u>Interstate Compact on Educational Opportunity for Military Children and Assistance to Transitioning Students from Military Families (§ 1003, Fla. Stat.).....</u>	<u>9</u>
<u>Foreign Students.....</u>	<u>9</u>
<u>English Language Learners (ELL).....</u>	<u>9</u>
<u>RECORDS, REPORTS, AND MONITORING</u>	<u>10</u>
<u>SECTION 2: ELEMENTARY EDUCATION (K-5).....</u>	<u>11</u>
<u>STUDENT PLACEMENT: PROMOTION, RETENTION, AND PROMOTION WITH INSTRUCTIONAL SUPPORT</u>	<u>11</u>
<u>PARENT NOTIFICATION</u>	<u>11</u>
<u>STUDENT RIGHTS FOR INSTRUCTION</u>	<u>12</u>
<u>PLACEMENT FOR NEW ENROLLEES K-5.....</u>	<u>12</u>
<u>Kindergarten/First Year Primary.....</u>	<u>12</u>
<u>Screening Activities for All New Kindergarten Enrollees.....</u>	<u>12</u>
<u>First Grade/Second Year Primary.....</u>	<u>12</u>
<u>PROMOTION IN GRADES K-5.....</u>	<u>12</u>
<u>Florida Assessments.....</u>	<u>12</u>
<u>Regular Promotion</u>	<u>13</u>
<u>Social Promotion.....</u>	<u>13</u>
<u>Targeted Instructional Support</u>	<u>13</u>
<u>Grade Level Promotional Standards.....</u>	<u>13</u>
<u>Promotion for Exceptional Students (ESE) in Grades K-5.....</u>	<u>15</u>
<u>Promotion with Instructional Support</u>	<u>16</u>
<u>Mid-Year Promotion.....</u>	<u>16</u>
<u>CURRICULUM PROVISIONS.....</u>	<u>16</u>
<u>Required Program of Studies Grades K-5.....</u>	<u>16</u>
<u>Placements Not Addressed in the Student Progression Plan.....</u>	<u>17</u>

<i>Remediation</i>	17
<i>Progress Monitoring Plan (F.S. 1008.25(4)(b))</i>	17
<i>Reading Intervention (F.S. 1008.25(5))</i>	17
<i>Resource Allocation</i>	18
<i>Successful Progression for Retained Third Grade Readers</i>	18
<i>READ Initiative</i>	19
<i>Accelerated Grade Placement</i>	19
<i>Acceleration Mechanisms for Fourth and Fifth Grade Elementary Students</i>	20
<i>Grading Policies and Practices</i>	21
<i>Report Cards</i>	23
SECTION III: SECONDARY EDUCATION (6-12)	24
CREDITS	24
<i>Definition of High School (Grades 9-12) Credits</i>	24
<i>Credit Earning</i>	24
<i>Credit Transfer (F.S. 1001.42 and 1003.433, SBR 6A-1.09941)</i>	24
<i>Distance Correspondence</i>	25
<i>Accredited Schools</i>	26
<i>Transfer Students</i>	26
<i>Non-accredited Schools</i>	26
<i>Home Education Program Transfer</i>	26
<i>Requirements for Graduation for Out-of-State and Out-of-Country Transfer Students</i>	26
<i>Determination of Mastery of Student Performance Standards</i>	27
<i>English Language Learners (ELL)</i>	27
GRADE FORGIVENESS FOR GRADES 6-12	27
<i>Middle School Grade Forgiveness Policy</i>	27
<i>High School Grade Forgiveness Policy</i>	28
GRADING POLICIES AND PRACTICES 6-12	28
<i>Grading Criteria Provided at the Beginning of the Grading Period</i>	28
<i>Incomplete grades</i>	29
<i>Pass-Fail Grades</i>	30
<i>Report Card Grades and Attendance Reporting</i>	30
<i>Marks in Conduct</i>	30
<i>Report Card Distribution Schedule</i>	30
GRADE POINT AVERAGE (GPA)	31
<i>Criteria for Participation in Interscholastic Activities</i>	31
<i>Class Rank GPA for Standard Diploma Students</i>	31
<i>Graduation with Honors</i>	32
STUDENT PROMOTION AND PROGRESSION (F.S.1008.25)	33
<i>Promotion Grades 6-8</i>	33
<i>Requirements for Middle Grades Promotion (Section 1003.4156, F. S.) to 9th Grade:</i>	34
<i>Good Cause Promotion (Grades 6-8 only)</i>	35
<i>Remediation Requirements and Minimum Competency 6-8: (Section 1003.4156, F. S.)</i>	36
<i>Progress Monitoring Plans (PMP)</i>	36
<i>Promotion Grades 9-12</i>	36
<i>Credit Acceleration Program (CAP) Section 1003.4295, F.S., Acceleration Options</i>	36
<i>Remediation Requirements 9-12 (1003.4282(5))</i>	37
HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATION OPTIONS FOR A STANDARD DIPLOMA	37
<i>24-Credit Program vs. 18 Credit Program:</i>	37
<i>Early high school graduation (section 1003.4281, F.S.)</i>	37
<i>Assessment Requirements</i>	37
<i>Academically Challenging Curriculum to Enhance Learning (ACCEL) options. (1002.3105)</i>	38
<i>Dual Enrollment (F.S. 1007.22; 1007.23; 1007.24; 1007.25; 1007.271 and 1007.272)</i>	38

Career Dual Enrollment	39
Procedures to Request Permission for Part-Time Dual Enrollment off Campus	40
Virtual School Procedures for FSUS Secondary Students	40
Adult Education Courses	41
Advanced Placement	41
Early Admission Criteria to Colleges and Universities (1007.27) (s)	42
GED Exit Option	42
Summer Session Enrollment	42
OTHER GRADUATION INFORMATION	43
Career education courses that satisfy high school credit requirements must:	43
Certificate of Completion	43
GRADUATION CEREMONY	43
Requirements for Participation	43
Graduation Plan	43
STATE UNIVERSITY AND COLLEGE ADMISSION AND BRIGHT FUTURES REQUIREMENTS	45
EXCEPTIONAL STUDENT EDUCATION (ESE)	47
PROMOTION FOR EXCEPTIONAL STUDENTS PURSUING FLORIDA STANDARDS	47
EXCEPTIONAL STUDENTS EDUCATION (ESE) AND SECTION 504 PROVISIONS	47
CURRICULUM AND INSTRUCTION (EXCEPTIONAL STUDENT EDUCATION)	48
DIPLOMA AND CERTIFICATE OPTIONS (ESE)	48
CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION CRITERIA (ESE)	49
REPORT CARDS AND GRADING (ESE)	49
PROGRESS REPORTS/PARENT NOTIFICATION (ESE)	49
OTHER PROGRAMS (ESE)	49
STATUTORY AUTHORITY	50

Deleted: LEGAL FOUNDATION OF THE STUDENT PROGRESSION PLAN	1
TABLE OF CONTENTS	4
SECTION 1: GENERAL K-12 INFORMATION	9
ENROLLMENT AND ADMISSIONS	9
Transfers from Out-Of-State Schools	9
Transfers from Home Education Programs and Private Schools	9
Placement of Transfer Students	10
Evidence of Immunization	10
Evidence of a Medical Examination	10
Married or Pregnant Students	11
Foreign Students	11
English Language Learners (ELL)	11
RECORDS, REPORTS, AND MONITORING	12
SECTION 2: ELEMENTARY EDUCATION (K-5)	13
STUDENT PLACEMENT: PROMOTION, RETENTION, AND PROMOTION WITH INSTRUCTIONAL SUPPORT	13
PARENT NOTIFICATION	13
STUDENT RIGHTS FOR INSTRUCTION	14
PLACEMENT FOR NEW ENROLLEES K-5	14
Kindergarten/First Year Primary	14
Screening Activities for All New Kindergarten Enrollees	14
First Grade/Second Year Primary	14
PROMOTION IN GRADES K-5	14
Florida Standards Assessments (FSA) and FCAT 2.0 Science	14
Regular Promotion	15
Social Promotion	15
Targeted Instructional Support	15
Grade Level Promotional Standards	15
Promotion for Exceptional Students (ESE) in Grades K-5	18
Promotion with Instructional Support	19
Mid-Year Promotion	19
Part-Time Students	20
CURRICULUM PROVISIONS	20
Required Program of Studies Grades K-5	20
Placements Not Addressed in the Student Progression Plan	20
Remediation	20
Progress Monitoring Plan (F.S. 1008.25(4)(b))	20
Reading Intervention (F.S. 1008.25(5))	20
Resource Allocation	22
Successful Progression for Retained Third Grade Readers	22
READ Initiative	22
Accelerated Grade Placement	23
Acceleration Mechanisms for Fourth and Fifth Grade Elementary Students	23
Grading Policies and Practices	25
Report Cards	26
SECTION III: SECONDARY EDUCATION (6-12)	28
CREDITS	28
Definition of High School (Grades 9-12) Credits	28
Credit Earning	28
Credit Transfer (F.S. 1001.42 and 1003.433, SBR 6A-1.09941)	28
Distance Correspondence	29
Accredited Schools	29
Transfer Students	30
Non-accredited Schools	30
Home Education Program Transfer	30
Requirements for Graduation for Out-of-State and Out-of-Country Transfer Students	30
Determination of Mastery of Student Performance Standards	31
English Language Learners (ELL)	31
GRADE FORGIVENESS FOR GRADES 6-12	31
High School Grade Forgiveness Policy	31
Middle School Grade Forgiveness Policy	32
GRADING POLICIES AND PRACTICES 6-12	32
Grading Criteria Provided at the Beginning of the Grading Period	32
Incomplete grades	33
Pass-Fail Grades	33
Report Card Grades and Attendance Reporting	33
Marks in Conduct	33
Report Card Distribution Schedule	34

SECTION 1: GENERAL K-12 INFORMATION

Enrollment and Admissions

Transfers from Out-Of-State Schools

Any student who transfers from an out-of-state or out-of-country school must meet age requirements for admission to Florida public schools. Any student who does not meet such requirements must:

- 1) Have met age requirements for public schools within the state or country from which the student is transferring
- 2) Have academic credit that is acceptable under the rules of the School Board
- 3) Provide required data as indicated below:
 - Official documentation that the parent(s) or guardian(s) was a legal resident(s) of the state in which the student was previously enrolled in school
 - Official school records which show attendance, academic information, and grade placement
 - Evidence of immunization
 - Evidence of date of birth
 - Evidence of medical examination completed within the last twelve months

Attendance

In order to provide reasonable consistency of maturity levels among students in the regular high school program, no person shall be permitted to attend the regular high school program after obtaining the age of 19. Those who obtain the age of 19 during the school year, may complete that school year.

Deleted: Maximum Age Limit for

Formatted: Heading 3 Char, Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt, Not Bold

Students shall be enrolled on a full-time basis. Transfers from Home Education Programs and Private Schools

A home education student who enrolls in FSUS must meet all district and State requirements for public school students. The parent must provide an academic assessment record for all work completed during the home education program. Appropriate grade placement will be determined by the Director, or designee. Placement in the same grade as recommended by the former school is not automatic. A four- to six-week screening period may be allowed from the time of enrollment, in order to assist with placement adjustments. Serious consideration is to be given to screening and competency tests results. A placement decision may be made in consultation with the teacher(s), other appropriate staff, and parents/guardians.

Deleted: regardless of age

Deleted: ¶

For home education students enrolling in grades 6 through 12, the parent must provide an academic assessment record for all work completed during the home education program. The school will transfer the courses and grades to the student's district transcript. All home education program courses will be given credit pursuant to the Universal Transfer of Credit rule. Please see the credit section under Secondary Education in the K12 FSUS Progression Plan for more information.

Transfers From Out-Of-State Schools

Any student who transfers from an out-of-state or out-of-country school must meet age requirements for admission to Florida public schools. Any student who does not meet such requirements must:

Formatted: Heading 3, Space Before: 0 pt, After: 0 pt

- 1) Have met age requirements for public schools within the state or country from which the student is transferring
- 2) Have academic credit that is acceptable under the rules of the School Board
- 3) Provide required data as indicated below:
 - Official documentation that the parent(s) or guardian(s) was a legal resident(s) of the state in which the student was previously enrolled in school
 - Official school records which show attendance, academic information, and grade placement
 - Evidence of immunization
 - Evidence of date of birth
 - Evidence of medical examination completed within the last twelve months

Placement of Transfer Students

If a student transfers before or during the school year, the receiving school shall initially honor placement in courses based on the student's enrollment in the sending school if the courses are offered. Course placement includes, but is not limited to, Honors, Advanced Placement, vocational, technical, and career pathways courses.

The receiving school is not precluded from performing subsequent evaluations to ensure appropriate placement and continued enrollment of the student in the courses. The receiving school must initially honor placement of the student in educational programs such as Gifted and Talented and English as a Second Language based on current educational assessments conducted at the sending school.

Evidence of Immunization

All students (K-12), including Florida transfers who enroll in FSUS, are required to have an up-to-date certificate of immunization (form HD680, which is available at the physician's office or the Health Department) prior to enrollment. Without this documentation, the student will not be allowed to attend school. This includes:

- Five doses of D.P.T. vaccine (Diphtheria, Pertusis and Tetanus). If the fourth dose was administered on or after the fourth birthday a fifth dose is not required.
- Four doses of Polio vaccine (OPV or IPV). If the third dose was administered on or after the fourth birthday a fourth dose is not required. Kindergarteners are required to have a 5th dose if the 4th dose was given before the 4th birthday.
- Two doses of MMR vaccine (Measles, Mumps, and Rubella)
- Completed Hepatitis B series, three shots within a 6-month period. Some physicians are using a two dose series - this must be documented
- 8th - 12th grade students are required to have one VZV vaccine (Varicella/Chicken Pox) or documentation of the disease.
- K -7th students are required to have 2 VZV vaccine (Varicella/Chicken Pox) or documentation of the disease.
- 7th-12th grade students are required to have the Tdap booster (Tetanus-Diphtheria-Pertusis). One of the most important things that you can do to help your student be successful in the classroom is to be sure that they stay healthy.

(Updated: 07/2016)

Note: Religious exemptions are allowed. They may be obtained at a Health Department clinic. Students may enter school on Temporary Medical Exemption (DOH 680-Part B; DOE Code 2) provided the expiration date has not passed. Students will be excluded from school if they do not comply with immunization laws.

Evidence of a Medical Examination

Deleted:

Upon initial enrollment into a Florida school, students must present certification of a school-entry health examination performed within 1 year prior to enrollment. Physicals completed out-of-country or state are acceptable. Any child shall be exempt from the requirement of a health examination upon written request of the parent of the child stating objection to the examination on religious grounds (F.S. 1003.22(1), Fla. Stat.).

Married or Pregnant Students

Students who become or have become married and students who are pregnant shall not be prohibited from attending school. Married students and students who are parents shall receive the same educational instruction or its equivalent as other students but may voluntarily be assigned to a class or program suited to their special needs. Consistent with F.S. 1003.54, Fla. Stat., pregnant or parenting teens may participate in a teenage parent program (F.S. 1003.21(1)(d), Fla. Stat.)

Interstate Compact on Educational Opportunity for Military Children and Assistance to Transitioning Students from Military Families (§ 1003, Fla. Stat.)

Formatted: Heading 3, Indent: Left: 0", Space Before: 0 pt, After: 0 pt

The purpose of the Interstate Compact on Educational Opportunity for Military Children is to remove barriers to educational success imposed on children of military families because of frequent moves and deployment of their parents. This compact applies to the children of:

- Active-duty members of the uniformed services, including members of the National Guard and Reserve on active-duty orders pursuant to § 1209 & § 1211, 10 U.S.C.
- Members of veterans of the uniformed services who are severely injured and medically discharged or retired for a period of 1 year after medical discharge or retirement; and
- Members of the uniformed services who die on active duty or as a result of injuries sustained on active duty for a period of 1 year after death. The compact does not apply to the children of:
 - Inactive members of the National Guard and military reserves;
 - Members of the uniformed services now retired,
 - Veterans of the uniformed services;
 - Other United States Department of Defense personnel, federal agency civilians, and contract employees not defined as active-duty members of the uniformed services.

Foreign Students

Any student entering the public school system from outside the United States will be placed by a combination of the following criteria:

- Age appropriateness
- Previous school experience
- Academic proficiency

Each foreign student with educational documentation will receive a recommended grade placement after an evaluation of the student's educational records has been made. The family is responsible for providing a certified English translation of all records. Adjustments to these recommended placements may be made by the Director or designee in accordance with relevant State Board of Education rules. Students who do not meet regular age requirements for entering kindergarten in Florida but who have attended kindergarten in their native country must have an official letter or transcript from the proper school authority, which shows record of attendance, academic information, and grade placement.

English Language Learners (ELL)

Age appropriateness, parent input, review of records/assessments, and other pertinent data available are all considerations used when determining the proper academic placement of students. Initial determination of student's academic skills or performance is done based on a parent/guardian/student comprehensive interview and academic records available. ELL students may need more review than English proficient students in order to develop an appropriate instructional plan. Each school must document the prior school experiences of new students by means of school records and transcripts. Telephone calls and other means of communication to the student's previous school to request records will be made. Such experiences must be taken into account in planning and providing age appropriate instruction. In order to effectively place ELL students, their academic abilities must be determined exclusive of their lack of English proficiency. Grading systems and grade levels may differ from systems in the United States. Comprehensive parent/guardian/student interviews, teacher-made tests, tests of academic abilities administered in the student's home language or other forms of informal assessment may be used to determine the appropriate grade level and class placements. The ELL Committee may be reconvened at any time after a student has been served for a semester to review and make recommendations for appropriate modifications. (Fla. Admin. Code R. 6A-6.0902)

RECORDS, REPORTS, AND MONITORING

- A record of all promotions, retentions, remedial placements and/or other types of special placement will be placed in the student's cumulative educational record.
- Student performance and progress will be reported to parents through periodic report cards, mid-term progress reports and standardized assessments. Parents are encouraged to arrange for a conference(s) with teachers and school officials as necessary at all grade levels.
- If it becomes evident during the second semester that a student is in danger of being retained, the parent/guardian will receive written notification of their child's possible retention.
- Any questions regarding student grade change requests must be received by July 1st of the academic year in question. Any incomplete grades will be changed to a grade of "F" at this time.

SECTION 2: ELEMENTARY EDUCATION (K-5)

Student Placement: Promotion, Retention, and Promotion with Instructional Support

Student promotion in grades K-5 is based on results of locally determined assessments and district levels of performance for student progression in reading, writing, science, and mathematics for each grade level, that include the state levels of performance on statewide assessments as defined by the Commissioner of Education. No one test with a single administration should determine promotion or retention. Virtual school coursework may only be used for acceleration. The preponderance of evidence from evaluations should be used to determine if a student is ready for the work of the next grade. (F.S. 1008.25(5) (a)) Under most circumstances, a student may be retained in elementary school (grades K-5) only once. However, in the case of mandatory third grade retention or on the recommendation of the principal and with the approval of the Director's staff, a student may be retained in elementary school a second time if, after remediation, the student continues to perform below the district identified minimum levels of performance and there is no justification for promotion with instructional support to the next grade.

Deleted: FCAT 2.0/FLOIDA STATE ASSESSMENT)

Formatted: Underline

No student may be retained solely due to English language proficiency. No student will be denied appropriate use of his/her primary language "No promotion or retention decision may be made for any individual student classified as ELL based solely on a score on any single assessment instrument, whether such assessment instrument is part of the state wide assessment program or of a particular district's formal assessment process. A formal retention recommendation regarding an ELL student may be made through action of an ELL committee."

Parent Notification

Parents or guardians of each student will be notified in writing annually of the progress of the student toward achieving the district identified minimum levels of performance in reading, writing, mathematics, and science and the student's score on each state wide assessment test. The evaluation of each student's progress will be based upon the student's classroom work, observations, tests, district and state assessments, and other relevant information.

Parents or guardians must be notified in writing at any time during a reporting period when it is apparent that the student is doing unsatisfactory work in any subject or may need retention in his/her grade level. Notification may include progress reports as well as letters, documented phone calls and parent/guardian conferences. When feasible, formal notification will be in a language or mode of communication understandable by the parents/guardians. Such notification shall also apply to social growth/behavior and work habits. No student shall receive an unsatisfactory grade if parents/guardians have not been notified. The opportunity for a conference with the teacher or principal must be provided to the parent/guardian of any student who may be retained. School personnel should make every effort to gain parent understanding and cooperation regarding a student's grade placement; the final decision as to grade placement, in grades other than 3rd, is the responsibility of the principal. Decisions made by the principal must be in accordance with all policies listed within the Student Progression Plan.

Parents will be notified in writing:

- If a student's progress is below the standards established for the student's grade placement.
- If the student is not progressing satisfactorily in any subject.
- If the student is being considered for retention.
- When the current and proposed supplemental remedial services are being provided to the child.
- To explain that if the reading deficiency is not remediated by the end of grade 3, the child will be retained, unless promoted with good cause exemption.

- To outline the student’s results on each statewide assessment. In addition, parents must be notified annually of their child’s progress towards achieving state and district expectations for proficiency in reading, writing, mathematics, science, and social studies

Student Rights for Instruction

All public education classes shall be available to all students without regard to race, national origin, sex, handicap, or marital status; however, this is not intended to eliminate the provision of programs designed to meet the needs of students with limited proficiency in English or exceptional education students. (F.S. 1002.20) Learners (ELL) services are designed to meet the communication, academic, and social needs of English Language Learners (ELL) students as defined in the District ELL Plan.

Placement for New Enrollees K-5

Kindergarten/First Year Primary

Legal Requirements - Students must be five years of age on or before September 1 of the school year. (F.S. 1003.21) Parents/Guardians must have adequate documentation of the following:

- Evidence of date of birth
- Evidence of immunization
- Evidence of medical examination completed within the last twelve months

Screening Activities for All New Kindergarten Enrollees

All school districts are required to administer the school readiness uniform screening to each kindergarten student in the district school system upon the student’s entry into kindergarten. Screening activities will identify students’ instructional needs and will assist schools in making grade level placements. Attention will be paid to

- Academic performance/concept development
- Communication competence
- Social/emotional behavior
- Health and physical development
- Home language survey

First Grade/Second Year Primary

- Have successfully completed a public school kindergarten program, or
- Have satisfactorily completed a non-public kindergarten program and provide evidence such as a report card reflective of the student’s satisfactory completion of kindergarten or a letter by the principal or director of the school, certifying the student’s satisfactory completion of a kindergarten program.

PROMOTION IN GRADES K-5

Florida Assessments

At the elementary level, the state assessments for English Language Arts and Mathematics is administered to third, fourth, and fifth graders. The state determines passing scores for these assessments, and students who do not meet

Deleted: Florida Kindergarten Readiness Screening
Deleted:)

Deleted:

Deleted: Standards Assessments

Deleted: FCAT 2.0 Science

Deleted: F

Deleted: SA

Deleted: three times per year

Deleted: annually

Deleted: for

the set performance levels on these assessments shall be evaluated for the nature of the deficiency and provided with targeted instructional support. Under MANDATORY THIRD GRADE RETENTION, the state assessment for English Language Arts is directly tied to promotion to the fourth grade.

- Deleted:
- Deleted: The
- Deleted: FCAT 2.0
- Deleted: is administered to fifth graders.

Regular Promotion

The evaluation of each student's progress will be based upon the student's classroom work, observations, tests, district and state assessments, and other relevant information in terms of appropriate instructional goals established by the Florida Department of Education's state standards. The primary responsibility for authorizing grade placement for the next year is that of professional staff members, subject to review and approval of the principal and Director, and subject to state statute, the rules of the State Board of Education and/or the FSUS School Board. The only exception is the Mandatory Grade 3 Retention *(§ 1008.25 (5)(b), Fla. Stat.).

- Deleted: Next Generation Sunshine
- Deleted: s
- Deleted: s
- Deleted:

Social Promotion

No student shall be assigned to a grade level based solely on age or other factors that amount to social promotion or administrative placement; however, this does not prevent students from being promoted based upon exemption according to state law and FSUS policy.

The student's growth toward the accomplishment of state and district identified minimum levels of performance in English Language Arts, mathematics, science, and social studies shall be the primary consideration in promotion/retention decisions. Student progression decisions consider the effectiveness of core instruction and the student's response to evidence-based instruction/interventions implemented with fidelity (§ 1008.25 (5)(b), Fla. Stat.)

When establishing student eligibility requirements, principals and school districts must consider, at a minimum:

- The student's performance on a locally determined assessment, a statewide assessment, or a statewide standardized assessment administered pursuant to § 1008.22, Fla. State.;
- The student's final passing grade in the grade-specific core course;
- The student's attendance;
- Recommendations from one or more of the student's teachers in core-curricula courses as outlined in §1003.01(14)(a-e), Fla. Stat.

Targeted Instructional Support

All students shall be afforded every opportunity to meet achievement expectations. Students not meeting district/state identified minimum levels of performance must receive targeted, intensive instructional support in order to accelerate the student's rate of progress towards standards.

Grade Level Promotional Standards

Kindergarten

Promotion of students in Kindergarten will be determined by teacher judgment and the recommendation of the school site administrator which may be based on the following indicators:

- Mastery of each Florida Standard at 70% or greater in English Language Arts (ELA) and Mathematics
- A scaled score of 783 or above on Star Early Literacy
- A scaled score of 789 or above on STAR Math
- A scaled score of 401 or above on iReady Reading

- Deleted: 645
- Deleted: 250

- A scaled score of 378 or above on iReady Math
- Exhibit letter and sound fluency, and demonstrate written expression equal to kindergarten end-of-year expectations
- The determination should also reflect successful progress in the adopted curriculum, classroom assignments, formal and informal assessments, and anecdotal data

Deleted: 1

First Grade

Promotion of students in First Grade will be determined by teacher judgment and the recommendation of the school site administrator which may be based on the following indicators:

- Mastery of each Florida Standard at 70% or greater in English Language Arts (ELA) and Mathematics
- A scaled score of 846 or above on STAR Reading
- A scaled score of 842 or above on STAR Math
- A scaled score of 454 or above on iReady Reading
- A scaled score of 407 or above on iReady Math
- Read with accuracy and fluency, and demonstrate written expression equal to first grade end-of-year expectations
- The determination should also reflect successful progress in the adopted curriculum, classroom assignments, formal and informal assessments, and anecdotal data

Deleted: 164

Deleted: 379

Second Grade

Promotion of students in Second Grade will be determined by teacher judgment and the recommendation of the school site administrator which may be based on the following indicators:

- Mastery of each Florida Standard at 70% or greater in English Language Arts (ELA) and Mathematics
- A scaled score of 937 or above on STAR Reading
- A scaled score of 913 or above on STAR Math
- A scaled score of 505 or above on iReady Reading
- A scaled score of 434 or above on iReady Math
- Read with accuracy and fluency, and demonstrate written expression equal to second grade end-of-year expectations
- The determination should also reflect successful progress in the adopted curriculum, classroom assignments, formal and informal assessments, and anecdotal data

Deleted: 327

Deleted: 495

Third Grade

To be promoted to grade 4, a student must score a Level 2 or higher on the statewide, standardized English Language Arts assessment required under s. 1008.22, F.S., for grade 3. If a student's reading deficiency is not remedied by the end of grade 3, as demonstrated by scoring Level 2 or higher on the grade 3 statewide, standardized English Language Arts assessment required under s. 1008.22, F.S., the student must be retained.

The district school board may only exempt students from mandatory retention for good cause. Good cause exemptions are limited to the following:

1. Limited English proficient students who have had less than 2 years of instruction in an English for Speakers of Other Languages program based on the initial date of entry into a school in the United States.
2. Students with disabilities whose individual education plan indicates that participation in the statewide assessment program is not appropriate, consistent with the requirements of s. 1008.212, F.S.
3. Students who demonstrate an acceptable level of performance on an alternative standardized reading or English Language Arts assessment approved by the State Board of Education.

4. A student who demonstrates through a student portfolio that he or she is performing at least at Level 2 on the statewide, standardized English Language Arts assessment.
5. Students with disabilities who take the statewide, standardized English Language Arts assessment and who have an individual education plan or a Section 504 plan that reflects that the student has received intensive instruction in reading or English Language Arts for more than two years but still demonstrates a deficiency and was previously retained in kindergarten, grade 1, grade 2 or grade 3.
6. Students who have received intensive reading intervention for two or more years but still demonstrate a deficiency in reading and who were previously retained in kindergarten, grade 1, grade 2, or grade 3 for a total of two years. A student may not be retained more than once in grade 3.

Promotion of students in Third Grade will be determined by teacher judgment and the recommendation of the school site administrator which may be based on the following indicators:

- Mastery of each Florida Standard at 70% or greater in English Language Arts (ELA) and Mathematics
- A scaled score of 534 or above on iReady Reading
- A scaled score of 458 or above on iReady Math
- Read with accuracy and fluency, and demonstrate written expression equal to third grade end-of-year expectations
- The determination should also reflect successful progress in the adopted curriculum, classroom assignments, formal and informal assessments, and anecdotal data
- Score at Level 2 or higher on [state assessment in Reading](#) and [Mathematics](#)

Fourth Grade

Promotion of students in Fourth Grade will be determined by teacher judgment and the recommendation of the school site administrator which may be based on the following indicators:

- Master each Florida Standard at 70% or greater in ELA and Mathematics
- A scaled score of 558 or above on iReady Reading
- A scaled score of 479 or above on iReady Math
- Read with accuracy and fluency, and demonstrate written expression equal to fourth grade end-of-year expectations
- Score Level 2 or higher on both [state assessments in Reading](#) and [Mathematics](#)

Fifth Grade

Promotion of students in Fifth Grade will be determined by teacher judgment and the recommendation of the school site administrator which may be based on the following indicators:

- Master each Florida Standard at 70% or greater in ELA and Mathematics
- A scaled score of 579 or above on iReady Reading
- A scaled score of 490 or above on iReady Math
- Read with accuracy and fluency, and demonstrate written expression equal to fifth grade end-of-year expectations
- Score Level 2 or higher on both [state assessment in Reading](#) and [Mathematics](#)

Promotion for Exceptional Students (ESE) in Grades K-5

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.25"

Formatted: Font: (Default) Calibri, 11.5 pt, Font color: Text 1

Formatted: Font: (Default) Calibri, 11.5 pt, Font color: Black

Formatted: No bullets or numbering

Deleted: ¶

Deleted: **Mandatory Third Grade Retention Requirements**

To be promoted to grade 4, a student must score a Level 2 or higher on the statewide, standardized English Language Arts assessment required under §1008.22, Fla. Stat., for grade 3. If a student's reading deficiency is not remedied by the end of grade 3, as demonstrated by scoring Level 2 or higher on the statewide, standardized assessment required under §1008.22, Fla. Stat., for grade 3, the student must be retained.

Promotion for Good Cause

If the child's reading deficiency is not remediated by the end of grade 3, the child must be retained unless he or she is exempt from mandatory retention for good cause. Good cause exemptions, as outline in Florida Statute, are as follows:

Exemption 1: Limited English proficient students who have had less than 2 years of instruction in an English for Speakers of Other Languages program based on the initial date of entry into a school in the United States.

Exemption 2: Students with disabilities whose individual education plan indicates that participation in the statewide assessment program is not appropriate, consistent with the requirements of State Board of Education Rule.

Exemption 3: Students who demonstrate an acceptable level of performance on an alternate standardized reading assessment approved by the State Board of Education.

Exemption 4: Students who demonstrate, through a student portfolio, that the student is reading on grade level as evidenced by demonstration of mastery of the content standards in reading equal to at least a Level 2 performance on the statewide standard.

Deleted: <#>A scaled score of 436 or above on STAR Reading
A scaled score 586 or above on STAR Math

Deleted: SA

Deleted: English Language Arts

Deleted: m

Deleted: <#>A scaled score of 520 or above on STAR Reading
A scaled score of 651 or above on STAR Math

Formatted: English (US)

Deleted: ¶

Formatted: Font: +Headings (Calibri), 11 pt

Formatted: Normal, Justified, Indent: Left: 0.5", Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at: 1.25" + Indent at: 1.5"

Deleted:

Deleted: <#>A scaled score of 630 or above on STAR Reading
A scaled score of 708 or above on STAR Math

Grade placement for students with identified disabilities is first determined by the same criteria for promotion and placement as for all students, with some additional considerations. A student with a disability who does not meet criteria for promotion may be exempted from mandatory retention after considering the procedures for good cause exemption that apply to all students with the following additional option.

Students with disabilities who take statewide assessments and have an IEP that reflects that the student has received intensive remediation in reading for more than 2 years but still has a deficiency in reading and was previously retained in kindergarten, first, second, or third grade may be considered for good cause exemption from mandatory retention.

Additional Factors (grades K, 1, 2, 4, or 5): Listed below are factors that need to be considered before making a decision to retain a student in Grade K, 1, 2, 4, or 5. Any decision to retain should be based on a pattern of these factors and should be discussed with parents/guardians. After consideration by a principal, not retaining a student may be based on the following factors:

- ESE: Exceptional Education students may not benefit from retention as much as they would benefit from additional individualized instructional strategies.
- Home Language: Level of English proficiency may not be a primary consideration for retention.
- Retention of English Language Learners (ELL) students must be determined by a school's ELL Committee except in the case of mandatory retention for reading deficiencies in grade 3.
- Previous Retention(s): According to research, students who are retained more than once are not likely to graduate from high school. An additional retention may not be as beneficial as an intensive intervention program.

Promotion with Instructional Support

Any student whose overall performance suggests he/she would benefit from being officially placed in a higher grade without meeting district identified minimum levels of performance in Reading, Writing, Mathematics, or Science will be promoted with instructional support. All students promoted with instructional support will receive a progress monitoring plan.

For a student who has been retained two or more years, an appropriate alternative placement should be considered. [F.S.1008.25 (2) (c)] This alternative placement may include, but not be limited to, after-school tutoring or a pull-out remedial program for individual support and assistance.

Mid-Year Promotion

Mid-year promotion of a retained 3rd grade student may occur at the Principal's discretion.

CURRICULUM PROVISIONS

Required Program of Studies *Grades K-5*

- A. The following areas of study are required at each grade level K-5:
- Art
 - Comprehensive Health Education to include Human Growth and Development/Alcohol and Substance Abuse Prevention
 - Language Arts (Handwriting, Language, Listening, Reading, Speaking, Spelling, Writing)

Deleted: ¶

Deleted: ¶

(s. 1008.25(7), F.S., and Rule 6A-1.094222, F.A.C.)

Deleted: Mid-year promotion of a retained 3rd grade student may occur once the student has demonstrated the ability to read at or above grade level and is ready to be promoted to 4th grade. Tools that may be used in reevaluating any student retained may include subsequent assessments, alternative assessments, and portfolio reviews (F.S. 1008.25(7)(b)4). ¶

Mid-year promotion means promotion of a retained student at any time during the year of retention once the student has demonstrated ability to read at grade level. To be eligible for mid-year promotion after November 1, a student must demonstrate proficiency levels in reading equivalent to the month of promotion to fourth grade as presented in the scope and sequence of the district's core reading program. Evidence of proficiency includes successful completion of a portfolio that meets the following requirements: ¶
Is selected by the student's teacher. ¶
Gives an accurate picture of the student's ability and include only student work that has been independently produced in the classroom. ¶
Includes evidence of mastery of the benchmarks assessed by the Grade 3 FSA ELA. ¶

Includes evidence of beginning mastery of Grade 4 benchmarks that are assessed by the Grade 4 FSA ELA. ¶
Is signed by the teacher and the principal as an accurate assessment of the required reading skills. ¶

Deleted: ¶

¶
Part-Time Students ¶

Students shall be enrolled on a full-time basis. Any exception must be justified on the basis of medical or personal hardship and must be approved by the Board.

Deleted: ¶

¶

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left: 0.25"

- Mathematics
- Music
- Physical education
- Science
- Social Studies

B. Areas of Study will include State Board approved standards.

C. Areas of Study will incorporate multi-cultural education, personal development, technology, and critical thinking components.

Deleted: →

Placements Not Addressed in the Student Progression Plan

Any student placement that is not addressed or supported in the Student Progression Plan must be reviewed by the Director's staff.

Remediation

While the student should be afforded every opportunity to meet achievement expectations, students not meeting district- identified minimum levels of performance must receive remediation or be retained. Three options are available:

- Remediate before the beginning of the next school year and promote;
- Promote and remediate during the following school year with more intensive intervention and remediation strategies specified in a revised Progress Monitoring Plan;
- Or retain and remediate in an intensive program that is different from the previous year's program and that takes into account the student's learning style.

Progress Monitoring Plan (F.S. 1008.25(4)(b))

FSUS has a school wide system of progress monitoring for all students who score below a Level 4 on the [state assessment in ELA or Mathematics](#).

Deleted: on

Deleted: FSA ELA and FSA Math assessments.

Reading Intervention (F.S. 1008.25(5))

If the student, at any grade, has been identified as having a deficiency in reading, the progress monitoring plan must identify:

- The student's specific areas of deficiency in phonemic awareness, phonics, fluency, comprehension, oral language, and vocabulary
- The desired levels of performance in these areas
- The instructional and support services to be provided to meet the desired levels of performance. Each elementary school shall regularly assess the reading ability of each K-3 student. The parent of any K-3 student who exhibits a reading deficiency shall be immediately notified:
 - Of the student's deficiency with a description and explanation, in terms understandable to the parent, of the exact nature of the student's difficulty in learning and lack of achievement in reading.
 - That the parent will be consulted in the development of a detailed progress monitoring plan, as described in F.S.1008.25(4)(b).
 - That the student will be given intensive reading instruction until the deficiency is corrected.

Students with substantial reading deficiency, as determined by local assessments and statewide assessments, conducted in grades K, 1, 2, or 3, must be given intensive reading instruction immediately following the identification. Students must have their reading proficiency reassessed by the beginning of the grade following the

intensive instruction. Intensive instruction shall be continued until reading deficiency is remediated. FSUS will also provide frequent monitoring of the students' progress in meeting the desired levels of performance.

The parent of any student who exhibits a substantial deficiency in reading, as described in 1008.25 F.S., must be notified in writing of the following:

1. That his or her child has been identified as having a substantial deficiency in reading, including a description and explanation, in terms understandable to the parent, of the exact nature of the student's difficulty in learning and lack of achievement in reading.
 2. A description of the current services that are provided to the child.
 3. A description of the proposed intensive interventions and supports that will be provided to the child that are designed to remediate the identified area of reading deficiency.
 4. That if the child's reading deficiency is not remediated by the end of grade 3, the child must be retained unless he or she is exempt from mandatory retention for good cause.
 5. Strategies, including multisensory strategies, through a read-at-home plan the parent can use in helping his or her child succeed in reading.
 6. That the statewide, standardized English Language Arts assessment is not the sole determiner of promotion and that additional evaluations, portfolio reviews, and assessments are available to the child to assist parents and the school district in knowing when a child is reading at or above grade level and ready for grade promotion.
7. The district's specific criteria and policies for a portfolio as provided in subparagraph (6)(b)4. and the evidence required for a student to demonstrate mastery of Florida's academic standards for English Language Arts. A parent of a student in grade 3 who is identified anytime during the year as being at risk of retention may request that the school immediately begin collecting evidence for a portfolio.

Resource Allocation

Per, F.S. 1008.25(3), the allocation of remedial and supplemental instruction resources for students shall occur in the following priority:

- Students who are deficient in reading by the end of grade 3.
- Students who fail to meet performance levels required for promotion consistent with the district school board's plan for student progression.

Successful Progression for Retained Third Grade Readers

Students retained under the provisions of mandatory third grade retention must be provided intensive interventions in reading to improve the student's specific reading deficiency, as identified by a valid and reliable diagnostic assessment. This intensive intervention must include effective instructional strategies, participation in the school district's summer reading camp, and appropriate teaching methodologies necessary to assist those students in becoming successful readers, able to read at or above grade level, and ready for promotion to the next grade.

Per 1008.25(7)(b), FSUS shall:

1. Conduct a review of progress monitoring plans for all students who did not score above level 1 on the reading portion of the [state assessment](#) and did not meet the criteria for one of the good cause exemptions. The review shall address additional supports and services needed to remediate the identified areas of reading deficiency. The school district shall require a student portfolio to be completed for each such student.
2. Provide third grade students who are retained with intensive instructional services and supports to remediate the identified areas of reading deficiency, including participation in the school's summer reading camp, [and](#) scientifically research-based reading instruction which includes phonemic awareness, phonics, fluency, vocabulary, and comprehension and other strategies, which *may* include, but are not limited to:
 - a. [Small group instruction](#)

Deleted: FSA

Deleted: and a minimum of 90 minutes of daily, uninterrupted,

Deleted: <#>Integration of science and social studies content within the 90-minute block ¶

- b. More frequent progress monitoring
 - c. Tutoring or mentoring
 - d. Extended school day
3. Provide written notification to the parent of a student who is retained that his or her child has not met the proficiency level required for promotion and the reasons the child is not eligible for a good cause exemption. The notification must comply with the provisions of § 1002.20(15), Fla. Stat. and must include a description of proposed interventions and supports that will be provided to the child to remediate the identified areas of reading deficiency.
 4. Implement a policy for the midyear promotion of a student retained who can demonstrate that he or she is a successful and independent reader and performing, at or above grade level in reading or, upon implementation of English Language Arts assessments, performing at or above grade level in English Language Arts. Tools that FSUS may use in reevaluating a student retained may include subsequent assessments, alternative assessments, and portfolio reviews, in accordance with rules of the State Board of Education.
 5. Provide students who are retained with a highly effective high-performing teacher as determined by the teacher's performance evaluation under § 1012.34, Fla. Stat.

READ Initiative

The district implements a Reading Enhancement and Acceleration Development (READ) Initiative. The focus of the READ Initiative is to prevent the retention of Grade 3 students and to offer intensive accelerated reading instruction to Grade 3 students who failed to meet standards for promotion to Grade 4 and each K-3 student who is assessed as exhibiting a reading deficiency (F.S.1008.25(7)(b)7).

The READ Initiative shall:

- Be provided to all K-3 students at risk of retention as identified by the statewide assessment system used in Reading First schools. The assessment must measure phonemic awareness, phonics, fluency, vocabulary, and comprehension.
- Be provided during regular school hours, in addition to the regular reading instruction
- Provide a state-identified reading curriculum that has been reviewed by the Florida Center for Reading Research (FCRR) at Florida State University and meets, at a minimum, the following specifications:
 - Assists students in developing the ability to read at grade level
 - Provides skill development in phonemic awareness, phonics, fluency, vocabulary, and comprehension
 - Provides scientifically based and reliable assessment
 - Provides initial and ongoing analysis of each student's reading progress
 - Provides a curriculum in core academic subjects to assist the student in maintain or meeting proficiency levels for the appropriate grade in all academic subjects.

Accelerated Grade Placement

Accelerated educational experiences should be provided to students within their assigned grade levels. Where accelerated educational experiences seem indicated for an individual student, consideration should be given for gifted program eligibility. Accelerated placement of students in succeeding grade levels may be considered for students who demonstrate exceptionally rapid mastery of grade level objectives and who have attained an adequate level of social maturity. A placement committee consisting of the principal, classroom teacher, and any other personnel designated by the principal will make recommendations concerning accelerated placement. The committee shall review student performance data such as standardized tests results, report card grades, core curriculum area assessments, discipline records, and behavior observations.

The probable long-range academic, social, and emotional effects of the decision will be considered on a case-by-case basis. The principal has the responsibility for making such assignments.

A parent conference will be held. The parent will be notified formally, in writing, if the student is approved to receive an accelerated grade placement to the next higher grade. A student will not be accelerated without written parental consent. Documentation will be placed in the cumulative record. The student's cumulative record and report card will be worded —accelerated grade placement and will include the major reason(s) for the assignment and the name of the principal who made the placement.

EXCEPTION(S):

1. Students who are enrolled in Grade 2 are excluded from receiving accelerated grade placement to Grade 4.
2. Students who are enrolled in Grade 5 are excluded from receiving accelerated grade placement to Grade 7.

Acceleration Mechanisms for Fourth and Fifth Grade Elementary Students

Math Acceleration Program (MAP)

To enter the program students must have scored a Level 5 on their prior year's Math Florida Standards Assessment and/or a score of 90th percentile or higher on the i-Ready Math final diagnostic assessment. All reading scores must be proficient or above proficient. Students in the Math Accelerated Program will receive instruction in their assigned grade level and additional instruction in above grade level content when appropriate.

Language Arts Acceleration

To participate in accelerated language arts curriculum, students must have scored a level 5 on their prior year's Language Arts Florida Standards Assessment. The Dean of Academics will provide various options on a case-by-case basis due to the maturity of ELA content and the inter-connectedness of reading and writing.

Middle school courses taken in elementary school shall be used to satisfy middle school promotion criteria once the student is enrolled in middle school. The grades the student earns will become a part of the middle school academic record, including failing grades, and may impact promotion in both elementary and middle school.

In the event that state assessment scores are not available, the Principal or designee may use a combination of grades, teacher recommendation, and other progress monitoring tools.

NOTES:

- At the end of each academic school year, accelerated placements will be reevaluated. Parents will be notified of any change of placement.
- Scores on one test may not give a thorough picture of a student's readiness for acceleration courses and other factors and assessments may need to be considered.

Deleted:

Deleted: -

Formatted: Heading 4

Deleted: The projected course work is:

Formatted: Heading 4

Deleted: 4th Grade ¶ (22-23) ... [3]

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0"

Deleted: Fourth and Fifth grade students who scored a level 5 on the FSA ELA or Math Statewide Assessment the previous year have the opportunity to take accelerated courses in the area of language arts and mathematics. ¶

Deleted: Acceleration Options ¶ ... [4]

Deleted: *Course sequence based on skill acquisition needed for success in upper level courses. ¶

Deleted: The Enrollment Verification Form should be completed and returned by November 1.

Deleted: FSA

- Accelerated courses used for the purposes of promotion must be completed with a passing grade, prior to the end of the school year.
- Completion of middle school courses in elementary school may result in the students having to remain on an accelerated track through middle and high school, based on student performance.
- FSUS is not responsible for assigning WP (Withdrawal Passing) or WF (Withdrawal Failing). FSUS is only responsible for posting the final grade once received from FLVS. Please refer to FLVS' policy and procedures for further explanation.
- All Florida public school students enrolled in tested grade levels (Grades 3-10) are to participate in [Florida's state-wide standards assessment program](#), per s. 1008.22 (3)(a), F.S. Students must take the test(s) appropriate for the grade level course in which they are receiving instruction. (e.g. a fifth grader taking a 6th grade math course must take the [state-wide standards assessment associated with 6th grade](#))

Deleted: the

Deleted:

Deleted: Florida Standards Assessment

Deleted: Florida

Deleted: Standards Assessment

Grading Policies and Practices

Elementary- K-5 Level

A. Two methods are used to communicate a student's progress with parents. Parent conferences are held at least one time per semester. Report cards are [emailed](#) home at the end of each nine-week period. Grading is based on the philosophy that children grow and develop at different rates. The curriculum is based on developmentally appropriate practices.

Deleted: sent

1. There is an expectation that a measurable amount of learning must take place. Learning rates vary with individual children. The grading for the program areas: math, language arts (reading, writing, spelling), science and social studies, physical education, is as follows:

A = Consistently high standards. The student has learned and can use at least 90% of the skills/concepts/processes taught on his/her instructional level during the nine weeks and daily work consistently meets high quality standards.

B = Consistently meets above average standards. The student has learned and can use at least 80% of the skills/concepts/ processes taught on his/her instructional level during the nine weeks and daily work consistently meets above average/acceptable standards.

C = Consistently meets acceptable standards. The student has learned and can use at least 70% of the skills/concepts/processes taught on his/her instructional level during the nine weeks or daily work consistently meets acceptable standards.

D = Consistently does not meet acceptable standards. The student has learned and can use at least 60% of the skills/concepts/processes taught on his/her instructional level during the nine weeks or daily work consistently does not meet acceptable standards most of the time.

F = Consistently does not meet acceptable standards. The student has learned and can use less than 60% of the skills/concepts/processes taught on his/her instructional level during the nine weeks or daily work consistently does not meet acceptable standards most of the time.

NOTE: These criteria will be used to report a student's progress in learning and using the skills presented within a nine-week reporting period. A parent/ guardian is notified through frequent communication of student's performance via: phone calls, emails, weekly advisory reports and parent conferences.

2. There is an expectation that a measurable amount of learning must take place. Learning rates vary with individual children. The grading for the program areas: art, music, Spanish, health and character education, and STEM Lab is as follows:

E = Excellent

After skills/concepts/processes have been introduced and the student has had adequate time to practice, the student who demonstrates advanced understanding beyond what is expected for the grade level will be marked with this indicator.

S = Satisfactory

After skills/concepts/processes have been introduced and the student has had adequate time to practice, the student who demonstrates understanding and is performing at the appropriate level for the grade will be marked with this indicator.

N = Needs Improvement

After skills/concepts/processes have been introduced and the student has had adequate time to practice, the student who cannot demonstrate an understanding or can only demonstrate an understanding with review and help will be marked with this indicator.

B. Student Conduct

- The FSUS Elementary Program places a heavy emphasis on developing appropriate citizenship skills in each and every student. Students are expected to consistently:
- Use self-discipline
- Respect others
- Follow school rules
- Accept correction

In addition, students are expected to practice good study skills by demonstrating the following:

- Listening attentively and following directions
- Settling down to work quickly
- Focusing and concentrating on their work.
- Staying on task
- Managing time and materials appropriately
- Completing class work on time
- Always doing their best

C. Conference Alert/Progress

- Parents/guardians of all K-5 students shall receive a conference alert if there are concerns about the student's social/academic/developmental progress. The classroom teacher shall document notification. This conference would be in addition to the one required conference.
- If during the second semester, it becomes evident that a student is in danger of being retained, a parent/teacher conference should be held as early as possible. For those parents who are unable to attend a conference, or for whom phone contact has been impossible, written notification of the possible retention MUST be sent home, and reasonable attempts to schedule a conference must be

Deleted: S = Satisfactory

After skills/concepts/processes have been introduced and the student has had adequate time to practice, the student who demonstrates understanding and is performing at the appropriate level for the grade will be marked with this indicator.

Deleted: E = Excellent

After skills/concepts/processes have been introduced and the student has had adequate time to practice, the student who demonstrates advanced understanding beyond what is expected for the grade level will be marked with this indicator.

made and documented. Parents will be afforded the opportunity for a parent-teacher conference at a mutually agreed time upon their request. Retention shall not occur without a parent-teacher conference. The classroom teacher will be responsible for maintaining documentation of parent notification. However, the failure to advise the parent of the student's academic progress shall not be grounds for modifying a student's grade(s).

Report Cards

Report cards are to provide students with attendance information, and an objective assessment of their scholastic achievement, work habits, and social growth and behavior. The elementary school shall use a standard report card appropriate for the school level. The student's academic performance in each course shall be based upon examinations as well as written papers, class participation, and other academic performance criteria.

However, parents/guardians must be notified any time the student is doing unsatisfactory work in any subject or may need retention in his/her grade level. Students and parents/guardians are to be advised of the criteria for assigning grades on a report card and the standards for promotion at the beginning of the school year or upon enrollment and continuously during the year.

SECTION III: SECONDARY EDUCATION (6-12)

Credits

Definition of High School (Grades 9-12) Credits

- A student, upon having received instruction in a designated course of study for a minimum of 67.5 hours for a one-half credit class and 135 hours for a one credit class and upon receiving passing grades (according to written grading standards including mastery of approved course performance standards and the State Board approved standards), will be granted credit for such course(s). FSUS will provide opportunities to students to make up missed instructional time or work for excused absences within reasonable time frames determined by the subject area teacher but not exceeding two weeks, unless specifically approved by the principal. In the event the student has not been in instruction for a minimum of 67.5 hours for a ½ credit course or 135 hours for a one-credit course, where the absence has been excused, the student may still be awarded credit if mastery of at least 60% of the course performance standards are demonstrated.
- The definition of credit was amended to allow for a Credit Acceleration Program (CAP) exemption. See Credit Acceleration Program section.

Credit Earning

Credit for high school graduation will be earned on a one-half credit system. Such credit will be earned at one-half credit for both semester and full-year (year-long) courses. A student enrolled in a full-year course shall receive one-half credit if the student successfully completes either the first half or the second half of a full-year course but fails to successfully complete the other half of the course and the averaging of the grades obtained in each half would not result in a passing grade. A student enrolled in a full-year course shall receive a full credit if the student successfully completes either the first half or the second half of a full-year course but fails to successfully complete the other half of the course and the averaging of the grades obtained in each half would result in a passing grade, provided that such additional requirements specified in district school board policies, such as class attendance, homework, participation, and other indicators of performance, shall be successfully completed by the student.

Remedial and compensatory courses taken in grades 9 through 12 may only be counted as elective credit. (F.S. 1003.43)

Career education courses that satisfy high school credit requirements must:

- Include workforce and digital literacy skills and the integration of required course content with practical applications and designated coursework that results in one or more industry certifications or clearly articulated credit or advance standing in a two-year or four-year certificate or degree program, which may include high-school junior and senior year work-related internships or apprenticeships.
- The instructional methodology used in these courses must be comprised of authentic projects, problems and activities for contextually learning the academics.

Credit Transfer (F.S. 1001.42 and 1003.433, SBR 6A-1.09941)

When students transfer into FSUS from another district, country or private school, an official transcript will be obtained and the principal (or designee) will approve credits for graduation. The principal (or designee) may evaluate transferred credits to the advantage of the student in cases where other schools award fractional credits not compatible with local course credit standards.

SBR 6A-1.09941

The purpose of this rule is to establish uniform procedures relating to the acceptance of transfer work and credit for students entering Florida's public schools.

(1) The procedures relating to the acceptance of transfer work and courses for students in middle grades 6, 7, and 8 from out of state or out of country shall be as follows:

(a) Grades earned and offered for acceptance shall be based on official transcripts and shall be accepted at face value subject to validation if required by the receiving school's accreditation. If validation of the official transcript is deemed necessary, or if the student does not possess an official transcript or is a home education student, successful completion of courses shall be validated through performance during the first grading period as outlined in paragraph (1)(b) of this rule.

(b) Validation of courses shall be based on performance in classes at the receiving school. A student transferring into a school shall be placed at the appropriate sequential course level and should be passing each required course at the end of the first grading period. Students who do not meet this requirement shall have courses validated using the Alternative Validation Procedure, as outlined in paragraph (1)(c) of this rule.

(c) Alternative Validation Procedure. If validation based on performance as described above is not satisfactory, then any one of the following alternatives identified in the district student progression plan shall be used for validation purposes as determined by the teacher, principal and parent:

1. Portfolio evaluation by the superintendent or designee,
2. Demonstrated performance in courses taken at other public or private accredited schools,
3. Demonstrated proficiencies on nationally normed standardized subject area assessments,
4. Demonstrated proficiencies on a statewide, standardized assessment, or
5. Written review of the criteria utilized for a given subject provided by the former school.

(2) The procedures relating to the acceptance of transfer work and credits for students in high school from out of state or out of country shall be as follows:

(a) Credits and grades earned and offered for acceptance shall be based on official transcripts and shall be accepted at face value subject to validation if required by the receiving school's accreditation. If validation of the official transcript is deemed necessary, or if the student does not possess an official transcript or is a home education student, credits shall be validated through performance during the first grading period as outlined in paragraph (2)(b) of this rule. Assessment requirements for transfer students under Section 1003.4282, F.S., must be satisfied.

(b) Validation of credits shall be based on performance in classes at the receiving school. A student transferring into a school shall be placed at the appropriate sequential course level and should have a minimum grade point average of 2.0 at the end of the first grading period. Students who do not meet this requirement shall have credits validated using the Alternative Validation Procedure, as outlined in paragraph (2)(c) of this rule.

(c) Alternative Validation Procedure. If validation based on performance as described above is not satisfactory, then any one of the following alternatives shall be used for validation purposes as determined by the teacher, principal and parent:

1. Portfolio evaluation by the superintendent or designee,
2. Written recommendation by a Florida certified teacher selected by the parent and approved by the principal,
3. Satisfactory performance in courses taken through dual enrollment or at other public or private accredited schools,
4. Satisfactory performance on nationally normed standardized subject area assessments,
5. Satisfactory performance on a statewide, standardized assessment, or
6. Written review of the criteria utilized for a given subject provided by the former school.

Students must be provided at least ninety (90) days from date of transfer to prepare for assessments outlined in subparagraphs (1)(c)3., and 4. and (2)(c)4. and 5. of this rule if required.

Rulemaking Authority 1003.25, 1003.4156, 1003.4282 FS. Law Implemented 1003.25, 1003.4156, 1003.4282 FS. History--New 8-28-00, Formerly 6-1.099, Amended 9-22-03, 4-30-12, 3-25-14, 8-20-17.

Distance Correspondence

Distance/Correspondence courses may be accepted for FSUS credit if they have received prior approval based on course syllabi by the principal or designee. All costs related to such coursework and documentation of successful completion is the responsibility of the respective student.

Accredited Schools

Credit from other accredited schools will be automatically approved.

Transfer Students

The criteria for promotion for transfer students will be the same as current FSUS students.

Non-accredited Schools

Credits from non-accredited schools, as well as foreign schools, will be evaluated on the basis of compatibility to local courses in terms of course length and content; in some cases communications with the previous school will be necessary, and a translation of transcripts required. Students transferring from another country shall receive English credit (Language Arts) for primary language study. English as it appears on a foreign transcript will be reflected as foreign language credit. Students transferring into a public school from a non-accredited school must be placed at the appropriate sequential course level. Performance at a minimum grade point average of 2.0 in the placement validates the student's prior performance in that subject area. For example, an 11th grade transfer student may validate his English I and II credits taken at the sending school with a 2.0 in English III at the receiving school. Students who do not meet a 2.0, or choose not to continue to the next sequential level in a particular subject area (i.e., foreign languages), must have their credits validated using an approved alternative validation procedure.

Home Education Program Transfer

A student entering high school from a home education program must present documentation (i.e., the student's portfolio with dated samples of work) which indicates the courses in which the student received home instruction. Credit for courses from any non-accredited program/school will be evaluated as follows: High School credits may not be given solely on the basis of time spent in a home education program. The decision regarding credits will be made by the high school principal. Parents shall provide to the school a detailed course description for each course, indicating objectives, instructional materials, and methods of student performance evaluation. Courses will be evaluated on the basis of comparability to local courses in terms of course length and content. Credits will be validated as stipulated above. Home Education students transferring into high school must earn a minimum of six credits at FSUS during their last full academic year prior to graduation in order to receive a diploma from the district. Parents must provide evidence that each course eligible for one high school credit consisted of at least 135 hours of instruction.

Requirements for Graduation for Out-of-State and Out-of-Country Transfer Students

(FS 1003.433(1)) Students who enter a Florida public school in 11th and 12th grade from out-of-state or from a foreign country shall not be required to spend additional time in high school in order to meet Florida high school course requirements if the student has met all requirements of the school district, state or country from which he/she is transferring. Florida course requirements shall not be retroactive for the transfer student provided that the student has been promoted to the 11th or 12th grade and has met all requirements of the school district, state, or county from which he/she is transferring. However, to receive a standard diploma, the transfer student must pass the appropriate statewide assessment based on his/her 9th grade cohort and maintain a 2.0000 GPA in order to receive a diploma from a Florida public school or an alternative standardized assessment approved by the State Board of Education.

Credits and grades earned and offered for acceptance shall be based on official transcripts and shall be accepted at face value subject to validation if required by the receiving school's accreditation. If validation of the official transcript is deemed necessary, or if the student does not possess an official transcript or is a home education student, credits shall be validated through performance during

the first grading period as outlined in paragraph (2)(b) of this rule. Assessment requirements for transfer students under Section 1003.4282, F.S., must be satisfied.

If a student transfers to a Florida public high school from out of country, out of state, a private school or a home school education program, and the student's transcript shows credit in Algebra I, the student must take and pass the statewide, standardized Algebra I EOC assessment or earn a comparative score on another exam as provided for under S. 1008.228(8), F.S., in order to earn a Florida standard high school diploma -- unless the student passed a statewide Algebra I assessment given by the transferring entity, or the student passed the high school mathematics assessment used by the transferring entity to meet ESSA requirements. If a student's transcript shows a credit in high school reading or ELA II or III, the student must take and pass 10th grade [ELA state assessment](#) or earn a concordant score on the SAT or ACT, or when the state transitions to ELA assessments, earn a passing score on the 10th grade ELA assessment in order to earn a Florida standard high school diploma.

Deleted: FCAT Reading/FSA ELA

Deleted:

Determination of Mastery of Student Performance Standards

Student performance standards will be measured on a regular, continuous basis. Such measurements may be made through the use of teacher observations, classroom assignments, and traditional and alternative forms of assessment. It is not the intent of the District School Board to measure student performance standards solely through the use of a single method or instrument (i.e., end-of-course test). A student will have demonstrated mastery of student performance standards for a district-approved course when through teacher observations, classroom assignments, and examinations, it has been determined that a student has attained a passing score for the course. This score (minimum of 60 percent) and the procedures to be used to determine semester and yearly averages will be in accordance with the procedures as outlined in the Student Progression Plan.

In the determination of mastery of student performance standards for high school credit, it is the intent of the District School Board to utilize student performance standards which are clear and precise statements of what the learner is expected to do by the end of a prescribed learning period; reflective of the essential knowledge, skills, concepts, or behaviors contained in the district-approved course descriptions; and clearly communicated to all learners at the beginning of a course or unit of instruction.

English Language Learners (ELL)

The education of the English Language Learner (ELL) is tailored to the student needs through design, scheduling, instructional strategies, philosophy, and learning activities by the identification, assessment, and classification process. English language instruction for ELL students shall utilize English for Speakers of Other Languages (ESOL) instructional strategies in approach; provide courses leading to English language proficiency; ensure access to appropriate ESOL instruction and to categorical programs and services; ensure qualified instructional personnel and monitoring for program compliance, equal access, and program effectiveness. (F.S. 1003.56)

Grade Forgiveness for Grades 6-12

Students are required to maintain a cumulative grade point average (GPA) of 2.0 on a 4.0 scale, or its equivalent, in the courses required for high school graduation.

[Middle School Grade Forgiveness Policy](#)

- A forgiveness policy for required core or elective courses for middle grades students shall be limited to replacing a grade of D or F with a grade of C or higher earned subsequently in the same or comparable course.
- A credit recovery policy for a middle school student who takes any high school course for high school credit and earns a grade of C, D, or F must allow the replacement of the grade with a grade of C or higher earned subsequently in the same or comparable course.

However, the transcript will display both course attempts and grades earned. No additional credit will be awarded for a repeated course that was previously passed.

Any course grade not replaced according to a district school board forgiveness policy shall be included in the calculation of the 2.0 cumulative GPA required for graduation. Only the higher semester grade of a C or higher will be used in computing the student's grade point average.

High School Grade Forgiveness Policy

- A forgiveness policy for required core or elective courses shall be limited to **replacing a grade of D or F with a grade of C or higher** earned subsequently in the same or comparable course.

GRADING POLICIES AND PRACTICES 6-12

Grading Criteria Provided at the Beginning of the Grading Period

Students will be advised of the grading criteria employed in the school and in each class. Students and parents are also to be advised of district-wide standards for promotion and graduation as applied to the student's grade placement.

- Students designated at the beginning of the school year must be enrolled in a full school day.
- The courses may include off-campus courses or work experience programs.
- Exceptions to these requirements may be granted in unusual circumstances by the principal. Permission is required in writing and a full explanation of the circumstances submitted.

Unweighted Grading Scale

The following scale will be used to determine report grades for each quarter (F.S.1003.437):

<u>Grade</u>	<u>Percent Range</u>	<u>GPA Value (Quality points)</u>	<u>Definition</u>
A	90 - 100	4	Outstanding Progress
B	80 - 89	3	Above Average Progress
C	70 - 79	2	Average Progress
D	60 - 69	1	Lowest Acceptable Progress
F	0 - 59	0	Failure
I			Incomplete

Grades 9-12 semester grades are calculated using the following scale (courses without EOCs):

<u>Quarter 1 – 40%</u>
<u>Quarter 2 – 40%</u>
<u>First Semester Exam – 20%</u>
<u>Quarter 3 – 40%</u>

Deleted: Middle School Grade Forgiveness Policy

A forgiveness policy for required core or elective courses for middle grades students shall be limited to **replacing a grade of D or F with a grade of C or higher** earned subsequently in the same or comparable course.

A credit recovery policy for a middle school student who takes any high school course for high school credit and earns a grade of C, D, or F must allow the replacement of the grade with a grade of C or higher earned subsequently in the same or comparable course.

However, the transcript will display both course attempts and grades earned. No additional credit will be awarded for a repeated course that was previously passed.

Any course grade not replaced according to a district school board forgiveness policy shall be included in the calculation of the 2.0 cumulative GPA required for graduation. Only the higher semester grade of a C or higher will be used in computing the student's grade point average.

Deleted: , except as specifically defined for individual seniors by the principal or his/her designee.

Quarter 4 – 40%
Second Semester Exam – 20%

Grades 9-12 full year grades are calculated using the following scale (courses with EOCs):

Semester 1 – 35%
Semester 2 – 35%
EOC Exam – 30%

Weighted Grading Scale – Honors, Advanced Placement and Dual Enrollment (ending with the Class of 2024)

FSUS’ weighted GPA is based a 5.0 scale for Advanced Placement and Dual Enrollment courses.

<u>Grade Percent Range</u>	<u>GPA Value (Quality points)</u>	<u>Definition</u>
A 90 - 100	5	Outstanding Progress
B 80 - 89	4	Above Average Progress
C 70 - 79	3	Average Progress
D 60 - 69	2	Lowest Acceptable Progress
F 0 - 59	0	Failure
I		Incomplete

NEW WEIGHTED SCALES- Beginning with the Class of 2025

Weighted Grading Scale - Honors

FSUS’ weighted GPA is based a 4.5 scale for Honors courses.

<u>Grade Percent Range</u>	<u>GPA Value (Quality points)</u>	<u>Definition</u>
A 90 - 100	4.5	Outstanding Progress
B 80 - 89	3.5	Above Average Progress
C 70 - 79	2.5	Average Progress
D 60 - 69	1.5	Lowest Acceptable Progress
F 0 - 59	0	Failure
I		Incomplete

Weighted Grading Scale – Advanced Placement and Dual Enrollment

FSUS’ weighted GPA is based a 5.0 scale for Advanced Placement and Dual Enrollment courses.

<u>Grade Percent Range</u>	<u>GPA Value (Quality points)</u>	<u>Definition</u>
A 90 - 100	5	Outstanding Progress
B 80 - 89	4	Above Average Progress
C 70 - 79	3	Average Progress
D 60 - 69	2	Lowest Acceptable Progress
F 0 - 59	0	Failure
I		Incomplete

Incomplete grades

Incomplete grades shall be reported as an “I” on the report card.

In cases where the school has not received student test scores from the state for an End of Course (EOC) exam and where the results are part of the student’s final grade, the school shall issue an “I” until results are provided.

Note: Please refer to the Code of Student Conduct in regards to procedures and policies for Make-Up Work. All Incompletes (I’s), unless given as the result of a missing state-wide standardized End Of Course (EOC) exam will become F’s at the end of the next grading period, or by July 1st after the conclusion of the school year.

Pass-Fail Grades

An earned grade of "P" (pass) will have no point value assigned.

Report Card Grades and Attendance Reporting

Report card grades are to provide the student and/or the student's parents with an objective evaluation of the student's scholastic achievement, conduct, and attendance.

Marks in Conduct

Marks in conduct on the report card are to reflect the student's progress independent of academic achievement. Standards for grading in these areas are as follows:

<u>Mark</u>	<u>Definition</u>
E	Excellent
S	Satisfactory
N	Needs Improvement
U	Unsatisfactory

Report Card Distribution Schedule

Report cards are to be issued for all students in grades 6-12 four times a year.

Grade Point AVERAGE (GPA)

Criteria for Participation in Interscholastic Activities

Interscholastic extracurricular activities are those organized student activities between, among or within schools which are carried on outside the curriculum or regular course of study in school. These activities may involve displays of talent, which include, but are not limited to, sports, speech, debate, and fine arts interscholastic competitions or festivals and career and technical student organization activities. FSUS requires its students to meet all requirements as stated in order to be eligible to participate in interscholastic and extracurricular activities. **FHSAA By-laws 19.6.1 and 19.7.1**

Pursuant to 1006.195 F.S.,

1. A student not currently suspended from interscholastic or interscholastic extracurricular activities, or suspended or expelled from school, pursuant to a district school board's suspension or expulsion powers provided in law, including ss. [1006.07](#), [1006.08](#), and [1006.09](#), is eligible to participate in interscholastic and interscholastic extracurricular activities.
2. A student may not participate in a sport if the student participated in that same sport at another school during that school year, unless the student meets the criteria in s. [1006.15\(3\)\(h\)](#).
3. A student's eligibility to participate in any interscholastic or interscholastic extracurricular activity may not be affected by any alleged recruiting violation until final disposition of the allegation pursuant to s. [1006.20\(2\)\(b\)](#).

Grades 6-8

To be eligible to participate in interscholastic extracurricular student activities in Grades 6-8, a student must have been promoted the previous school year, and maintain a 2.0000 Grade Point Average on a 4.0000 scale for the previous semester. This grade point average will be checked at the end of the semester and will determine the student's eligibility for the next semester.

Any student in Grades 6-8 participating in a high school sport will be subject to eligibility requirements set forth by the Florida High School Athletic Association (FHSAA).

Grades 9-12

To be eligible to participate in interscholastic extracurricular student activities under guidelines set by the Florida High School Athletic Association (FHSAA) in grades 9-12, a student must maintain an un-weighted cumulative grade point average of 2.0000 or above on a 4.0000 scale, or its equivalent, in the courses required by F.S.1003.43. Grade point average will be checked at the end of the semester and will determine the student's eligibility for the next semester. Additionally, a student must maintain satisfactory conduct and, if a student is arrested and charged or is found to have committed a felony or a delinquent act which would have been a felony if committed by an adult, regardless of whether adjudication is withheld, the student's participation in interscholastic extracurricular activities is contingent upon established and published school board policy.

Class Rank GPA for Standard Diploma Students

The Class Rank, a numeric weighted cumulative GPA, will be calculated at the beginning of the semester of graduation. Semester grades earned in all courses during the regular school day (including forgiveness grades), high school credit courses taken prior to ninth grade, or in approved summer programs, or in approved college or university programs, or in adult education; these grades will be a part of the transcript and will be calculated in the class rank grade point average.

Graduation with Honors

“Cum laude” designation will be determined using a 4.0000 cumulative un-weighted scale for all courses for which high school credit has been awarded. At the beginning of the semester of graduation, students with a cumulative GPA of 3.9000 to 4.0000 will receive Summa Cum Laude designation; 3.8000 to 3.8999 Magna Cum Laude designation; and 3.7000 to 3.7999 Cum Laude designation and 3.5000 – 3.6999 Honor Graduate designation.

STUDENT PROMOTION AND PROGRESSION (F.S.1008.25)

Student promotion in grades 6-12 is based on results of locally determined assessments, and where appropriate, statewide assessment. (F.S. 1008.25) The time required to complete grades 6-12 will depend upon successful completion of required state and district credits, testing requirements and grade point average. .

- No student may be retained solely due to English language proficiency.
- No promotion or retention decision may be made for any individual student classified as ELL based solely on a score on any single assessment instrument, whether such assessment instrument is part of the statewide assessment program or of a particular district's formal assessment process. A formal retention recommendation regarding an ELL student may be made through action of an ELL committee." (FS 1003.56)
- School personnel should utilize available resources to achieve parent understanding and cooperation regarding a student's grade placement; the final decision as to grade placement, however, is the responsibility of the principal.
- Any student who appears to be having difficulty meeting promotion requirements should be evaluated carefully by the Child Study Intervention Team, and according to the MTSS plan, to be certain that the student does not require an exceptional student assignment. No student may be retained based solely on his/her level of English language proficiency. A formal retention recommendation regarding an English Language Learner student may be made through the action of an ELL committee (F.S. 1008.25)
- Parents or guardians of each student will be notified in writing annually of the progress of the student toward achieving the District identified minimum levels of performance in reading, writing, mathematics, and science and the student's results on each statewide assessment test. Evaluation of each student's progress will be based upon the student's classroom work, observations, tests, District and State. Parents will also be notified of a student's progress at mid-term and at the conclusion of every 9-weeks.
- At the end of each semester, the parent or guardian of each student in 9, 10, 11, and 12 who has a cumulative grade point average of less than 0.5 above the cumulative grade point average required for graduation shall be notified that the student is at risk of not meeting the requirements for graduation. The notice shall contain an explanation of the policies the district has put in place to assist the student in meeting the grade point average requirement. [F.S. 1003.43(5) (e)(2)]

Deleted: RTI

Promotion Grades 6-8

Middle school students at FSUS are expected to meet state and local performance standards as follows:
Earn a yearly final grade of "D" or better in language arts, mathematics, science, and social studies.

Middle School Students must meet the following requirements to be promoted to the next grade:

Promotion to Grade 7

A sixth grade student must have earned a final grade of "D" or better in two of the four core sixth grade core courses: English Language Arts, mathematics, science, or social studies.

Promotion to Grade 8

A seventh grade student must have earned a final grade of "D" or better in two of four core seventh grade courses; English, mathematics, science, or social studies and the required sixth grade courses.

Students must earn a passing final grade in all previous core courses.

Requirements for Middle Grades Promotion (Section 1003.4156, F. S.) to 9th Grade:

(1) In order for a student to be promoted to high school from a school that includes middle grades 6, 7, and 8, the student must successfully complete the following courses:

- (a) Three middle grades or higher courses in English Language Arts (ELA).
- (b) Three middle grades or higher courses in mathematics. Each school that includes middle grades must offer at least one high school level mathematics course for which students may earn high school credit.

Algebra I: Beginning with the 2011-2012 school year, middle grades students enrolled in Algebra I must take the Algebra I EOC assessment and pass the course to earn high school Algebra I credit. Beginning 2013-2014, the Alg. I EOC assessment will constitute 30 percent of the student's final course grade, Middle grades students who take Algebra I are required to pass the Algebra I EOC assessment in order to earn a standard diploma.

Geometry: Middle grades students enrolled in high school Geometry must take the EOC assessment, which constitutes 30 percent of the student's final course grade, and earn a passing grade in the course. Middle grades students must pass the Geometry EOC assessment in order to earn a standard high school diploma scholar designation.

- (c) Three middle grades or higher courses in social studies. Beginning with students entering grade 6 in the 2012-2013 school year, one of these courses must be at least a one-semester civics education course that includes the roles and responsibilities of federal, state, and local governments; the structures and functions of the legislative, executive, and judicial branches of government; and the meaning and significance of historic documents, such as the Articles of Confederation, the Declaration of Independence, and the Constitution of the United States. Beginning with the 2013-2014 school year, each student's performance on the statewide, standardized EOC assessment in civics education required under s. 1008.22 constitutes 30 percent of the student's final course grade.
- (d) Three middle grades or higher courses in science. Successful completion of a high school level Biology I course is not contingent upon the student's performance on the statewide, standardized EOC assessment required under s. 1008.22. However, beginning with the 2012-2013 school year, to earn high school credit for a Biology I course, a middle grades student must take the statewide, standardized Biology I EOC assessment, which constitutes 30 percent of the student's final course grade, and earn a passing grade in the course. Middle grades students must pass the Biology I EOC assessment to qualify for a standard high school diploma scholar designation.
- (e) One course in career and education planning to be completed in 6th, 7th, or 8th grade. The course may be taught by any member of the instructional staff. At a minimum, the course must be Internet-based, easy to use, and customizable to each student and include research-based assessments to assist students in determining educational and career options and goals. In addition, the course must result in a completed personalized academic and career plan for the student; must emphasize the importance of entrepreneurship skills; must emphasize technology or the application of technology in career fields; and,

beginning in the 2014-2015 academic year, must include information from the Department of Economic Opportunity's economic security report as described in s. [445.07](#). The required personalized academic and career plan must inform students of high school graduation requirements, including a detailed explanation of the diploma designation options provided under s. [1003.4285](#); high school assessment and college entrance test requirements; Florida Bright Futures Scholarship Program requirements; state university and Florida College System institution admission requirements; available opportunities to earn college credit in high school, including Advanced Placement courses; the International Baccalaureate Program; the Advanced International Certificate of Education Program; dual enrollment, including career dual enrollment; and career education courses, including career-themed courses and courses that lead to industry certification pursuant to s. [1003.492](#) or s. [1008.44](#).

Students enrolled in a course with a statewide, standardized end-of-course (EOC) assessment must take the EOC assessment. The student's results on the statewide, standardized EOC assessment constitute 30 percent of the student's final course grade. No final, cumulative exam for the course may be given in addition to the statewide, standardized EOC assessment.

A middle grades student who transfers into the state's public school system from an out-of-country, an out-of-state, a private school or a home education program after the beginning of the second term of Grade 8 is not required to meet the civics education requirement for promotion from the middle grades if the student's transcript documents passage of three courses in social studies or two year-long courses in social studies that include coverage of civics education.

Final course grades for Algebra I, Geometry, US History, Civics, and Biology will only be calculated after receiving the student's results. [This will constitute 30% of the student's final course grade.](#) Should the state delay releasing results to the school until after the start of the following school year, the student's final course grade will be calculated at the time received. After scores are released, a parent or guardian may request an updated transcript after the course grade is amended to include the results of the EOC.

Good Cause Promotion (Grades 6-8 only)

Any student who has not met the FSUS criteria for promotion may be exempted from retention due to "good cause". No student may be assigned to a grade level based solely on age or other factors that constitute social promotion pursuant to s. [1008.25](#).

"Good Cause" is defined as one or more of the following:

- a. Prior retention(s).
- b. A recommendation for the Individualized Education Plan (IEP)/504 committee regarding Exceptional Student Education (ESE) grade placement.
- c. A recommendation from the Progress Monitoring Plan (PMIP)/English Language Learners (ELL) committee regarding ELL student grade placement.
- d. Traumatic event or experience in a child's life.

If a student's disability is used as the justification for "Good Cause" promotion, the promotion must be based on the recommendation of an IEP/504 committee. The composition and operating procedures of the IEP/504 committee are governed by federal and state Board Rules.

Promotion of ELL students, who have not met district criteria for promotion, must be based on the recommendation of the PMIP/IEP committee. The PMIP/ELL committee is governed by State Board Rules and the FSUS ELL Plan.

In each case of promotion based on good cause the student's report card should indicate "grade assignment by administrative placement." Parents should be notified formally in writing that their child is being administratively placed in the next higher grade, the major reason(s) for the placement, and the name of the principal who initiated the placement. A copy of this notification should be placed in the student's cumulative guidance record.

Remediation Requirements and Minimum Competency 6-8: (Section 1003.4156, F. S.)

Levels of minimum competency in reading and writing, mathematics and science (to include performance on district and statewide assessments), are established for each grade level.

Progress Monitoring Plans (PMP) (s. 1008.25(4) (a)-(c), F.S.): The school in which the student is enrolled must develop, in consultation with the student's parent, and must implement a progress monitoring plan. A progress monitoring plan is intended to provide the school district and the school flexibility in meeting the academic needs of the student and to reduce paperwork. A student who is not meeting the school district or state requirements for proficiency in reading and math shall be covered by one of the following plans to target instruction and identify ways to improve his or her academic achievement:

1. A federally required student plan such as an individual education plan;
2. A school wide system of progress monitoring for all students; or
3. An individualized progress monitoring plan.

Any student who appears to be having difficulty in meeting promotion requirements should be evaluated carefully by the teacher(s) and the Child Study Intervention Team.

Parents should be notified when it appears that the student may fail or is doing unsatisfactory work in any courses or grading assignments. Parents should also be notified in writing during the school year when it is apparent that the student may fail the entire grade. The opportunity for a conference with the teacher or principal is available to any parent. Notification to the parent as specified herein shall be deemed to be directory only, and the failure to so notify the parent shall not negate or invalidate the action taken.

Promotion Grades 9-12

9th grade cohort group will be determined based on the year you are promoted from 8th grade.

Each student is to be provided information on his/her credit standing each year.

Students are expected to graduate high school within 4 years of entering in their ninth grade year. Students who do not fulfill all requirements for graduation or make sufficient academic progress within 4 years will be subject to an administrative meeting to determine appropriate placement.

Credit Acceleration Program (CAP) Section 1003.4295, F.S., Acceleration Options

The Credit Acceleration Program (CAP) is created for the purpose of allowing a student to earn high school credit in Algebra I, Geometry, United States History, or Biology if the student passes the statewide, standardized assessment administered under s. 1008.22. Notwithstanding s. 1003.436, a school district shall award course credit to a student who is not enrolled in the course, or who has not completed the course, if the student attains a passing score on the corresponding statewide, standardized assessment. The school district shall permit a student who is not enrolled in the course, or who has not completed the course, to take the assessment during the regular administration of the assessment.

Deleted: Freshman (220-231 Cohort) ¶
Sophomore (2119-2220 Cohort) ¶
Junior (2018-2119 Cohort) ¶
Senior (1917-2018 Cohort) ¶

Remediation Requirements 9-12 (1003.4282(5))

Each year a student does not pass the statewide, standardized grade 10 English Language Arts Florida Standards Assessment, the student must be enrolled in and complete an intensive remedial course the following year or be placed in a content area course that includes remediation of skills not acquired by the student.

Placement of Level 1 or 2 readers in either an intensive reading course or a content area course in which reading strategies are delivered shall be determined by diagnosis of reading needs. The department shall provide guidance on appropriate strategies for diagnosing and meeting the varying instructional needs of students reading below grade level. Reading courses shall be designed and offered pursuant to the comprehensive reading plan required by s. [1011.62\(9\)](#)

Each year a student scores Level 1 or Level 2 on the statewide, standardized Algebra I EOC assessment, the student must be enrolled in and complete an intensive remedial course the following year or be placed in a content area course that includes remediation of skills not acquired by the student.

HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATION OPTIONS FOR A STANDARD DIPLOMA

24-Credit Program vs. 18 Credit Program:

Beginning with students entering grade nine in the 2007-2008 school year, graduation requires a successful completion of a minimum of 24 credits. Students must be advised of eligibility requirements for state scholarship programs and postsecondary admission. Under this law, s. 1003.428, F.S., graduation requirements for this program are summarized in the graduation flyers provided by FLDOE at <http://www.fldoe.org/academics/graduation-requirements/>

An 18 credit option is available to students pursuant to s. 1003.429. Selection of one of the options below (1) may be completed by the student at any time during grades 9-12, subject to the requirements listed below. (2) If the student and parent fail to select one of the accelerated high school graduation options, the student shall be considered to have selected the general requirements for high school graduation. (1003.429)

Early high school graduation (section 1003.4281, F.S.)

A student may choose the option of an early graduation (less than eight semesters) if the student earns 24 credits and meets the graduation requirements set forth in s. 1003.4282, F.S.

Assessment Requirements

Students will be required to participate in the statewide assessment program as required by F.S. 1008.22. Students enrolled in a course with a statewide, standardized end-of-course (EOC) assessment must take the EOC assessment. The student's results on the statewide, standardized EOC assessment constitute 30 percent of the student's final course grade. No final, cumulative exam for the course may be given in addition to the statewide, standardized EOC assessment.

Final course grades for Algebra I, Geometry, US History, Civics, and Biology will only be calculated after receiving the student's results. Should the state delay releasing results to the school until after the start of the following school year, the student's final course grade will be calculated at the time received. In cases where a student sat for the required exam and the delayed scores are needed to determine graduation eligibility for the spring in which they took the exam, the course's grade shall constitute an average of the semester grades. After scores are released, a parent or guardian

may request an updated transcript after the course grade is amended to include the results of the EOC.

If an out-of-country, out-of-state, private school or home education program transfer student has a final grade and credit for Geometry, Biology I, or US History related course, it must be honored without the student taking the requisite EOC assessment.

If an out-of-country, out-of-state, private school or home education program transfer student's transcript indicates credit in English II or III, the student must take and pass the Grade 10 ELA assessment or earn a concordant score to earn a standard diploma.

If an out-of-country, out-of-state, private school or home education program transfer student's transcript indicates Algebra I course credit, the student must take and pass the Algebra I EOC assessment to earn a standard diploma unless the student has met a state approved concordant score.

Academically Challenging Curriculum to Enhance Learning (ACCEL) options. (1002.3105)

Academically Challenging Curriculum to Enhance Learning (ACCEL) options are educational options that provide academically challenging curriculum or accelerated instruction to eligible public school students in kindergarten through grade 12. ACCEL options are provided through Advanced Placement (AP), Career and Technical Education (CTE), Dual Enrollment (DE), and/or virtual coursework.

Requirements for the Three Year, 18 Credit ACCEL Program

While it is expected that the majority of high school students can make satisfactory progress in four years (9-12), some individuals will require more or less time to develop their educational potential. Therefore, the following progression alternatives are available to meet student needs.

- Physical education is not required
- 3 elective credits
- Online course is not required
- All other graduation requirements for a standard diploma must be met (per s. 1003.4282(3) (a)-(e), F.S.).

If a student participates in an ACCEL option pursuant to the parental request under subparagraph (b)1., a performance contract must be executed by the student, the parent, and the principal. At a minimum, the performance contract must require compliance with:

1. Minimum student attendance requirements.
2. Minimum student conduct requirements.

Dual Enrollment (F.S. 1007.22; 1007.23; 1007.24; 1007.25; 1007.271 and 1007.272)

For the purpose of this section, a student is eligible for dual enrollment based on the requirements set for in the articulation agreement between FSUS and the community college or university for which the agreement has been signed. Students who are eligible for dual enrollment pursuant to this section may enroll in dual enrollment courses conducted during school hours, after school hours, and during the summer term. However, if the desired course conflicts with the ability of the student to attend a course required for graduation, remediation, or otherwise required for student progression, the student will be required to determine another time for the student to take the dual enrollment course. If the student is projected to graduate from high school before the scheduled completion date of a postsecondary course, the student may not register for that course through dual enrollment.

Credits earned at the college level may be applied toward high school graduation requirements. Dual Enrollment is defined as the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in a post-secondary course creditable toward a vocational certificate or an associate or baccalaureate degree. Technical Credit Dual Enrollment, when available through an articulation agreement, shall be provided as a curricular option for secondary students to pursue in order to earn a series of elective credits toward the high school diploma.

Students enrolled are exempt from the payment of registration, matriculation and lab fees. Students enrolling should have sufficient emotional maturity and study habits to benefit from the program.

The following Dual Enrollment Courses are currently offered on FSUS campus:
ENC 1101/ENC 1102
MAC 1033/MAC 1105
POS 1041/ECO2013

Students must be recommended by their high school counselor and principal (or designee). School representatives reserve the option to deny a request based on academic or behavior records which indicate that the student would not be best served by this purpose. Readiness will be based on, but not limited to, statutory requirements, State Board rule and the requirements in the Articulation Agreement between FSUS and respective community college or university.

- 3.0 GPA [cumulative GPA \(TCC\)](#) or [3.9 unweighted GPA \(FSU\)](#)
- Passing scores on either the [PSAT](#), SAT, ACT, or PERT
- [Have a minimum of 12 graded credits \(by start of application term\) to include:](#)
 - [2 English Language Arts credits](#)
 - [3 Math credits, one of which must be Algebra II or higher](#)
 - [1 Science credit with lab](#)
 - [1 Social Science credit](#)
- Positive high school attendance patterns
- Lack of discipline problems
- Recommendation of the principal or designee

Formatted: (none)

Formatted: (none)

Formatted

Formatted: (none)

Formatted: (none)

Formatted: (none)

In the event a student fails or withdraws from a dual enrollment course, the student will not be permitted to participate in dual enrollment the following semester until a review has been conducted by the guidance department and the principal.

Students who opt to participate in the 3 year- 18-credit diploma option must complete all dual enrolled courses prior to the completion of the 18 required credits.

Students may not take a Dual Enrollment course for a second time for grade replacement. Students are to satisfy course requirements within ten days of the last day of the previous grading period. The principal may extend the time requirement for extreme hardships.

Career Dual Enrollment

Career dual enrollment is limited to students enrolled in courses/programs leading to industry certification.

Specifically S. 1007.271(7), F.S., states the following: "Career dual enrollment shall be provided as a curricular option for secondary students to pursue in order to earn industry certifications adopted pursuant to S. 1008.44, which count as credits toward the high school diploma. Career dual enrollment shall be available for secondary students seeking a degree and industry certification through a career education program or course."

Students participating in the Lively dual enrollment program are only permitted to participate in the afternoon course offerings (12:15-4:15 p.m. Monday-Thursday).

Procedures to Request Permission for Part-Time Dual Enrollment off Campus

In order for an FSUS student to request to take college level courses on a college campus on a part-time basis, the following procedures must be followed.

- The student must fill out the permission to dual enroll form, which is available from the school counselor, academic dean, or the high school principal. The permission form must be approved by the school counselor, academic dean, or principal before the student has permission to enroll at a college.
- A student cannot take a class off campus which is already offered on campus at FSUS (except for those students enrolled in the TCC Early Admission Program).
- A student must take a minimum of six (6) total classes. These include the sum of classes on campus at FSUS and off campus at a college or university.
- A student's FSUS course load and schedule must take priority. Off campus, dual enrolled classes must be scheduled around the student's courses in which they are enrolled at FSUS.
- A dual enrolled part-time student cannot take more than eleven (11) credit hours in one semester of college credit courses located off the FSUS campus.
- Students who have disciplinary, attendance, or tardy issues at FSUS can be denied the opportunity to take dual enrolled classes off campus as deemed by administration.
- Students participating in the Lively Dual Enrollment Program are only permitted to participate in the afternoon course offerings (12:15-4:15 p.m. Monday-Thursday).

Deleted: <#>¶

Virtual School Procedures for FSUS Secondary Students

As stipulated by the Florida K-20 Education Code (F.S.1002.20) parents have the right to choose educational options such as Florida Virtual School for their children.

Section 1002.37(3)(c), F. S., states that school districts may not limit student access to FLVS/MyDistrict Virtual courses. However, the school counselor or academic dean will determine if the course is academically appropriate for the student based upon the student's academic history, grade level, and age.

Students wishing to take courses at FLVS are more than welcome to do so. However, the following policies will be used to approve or deny these courses.

Counselors or academic deans will approve FLVS/MyDistrict Virtual courses under the following circumstances:

- Grade Forgiveness for middle school students in situations where a student made an F or D in middle school courses
- Credit Recovery (for middle school students taking high school courses) in situations where a student made an "F," "D", or "C"
- Credit Recovery (for high school students taking high school courses) in situations where a student made a "D" or "F" for a semester or full year
- If the desired online course(s) is an academically appropriate placement based on the criteria set forth by F.S. 1002.20

Counselors or academic deans may determine if a course(s) is academically appropriate:

- Student's academic history

- Material/content of course is not grade level and/or age appropriate for the student at this time.
- Requested courses might not adhere to the recommended course progression.

The following steps are necessary to enroll in a virtual course.

1. The parent and student create an account on the FLVS website (www.flvs.net).
2. Parent approves the course by selecting the verify button located to the left of the course offering.
3. Guidance counselor or academic dean approves course(s).
4. FLVS/MyDistrict Virtual will assign a teacher and this can take approximately 2-4 weeks depending upon course/teacher availability.

Credits from other accredited education providers may also be authorized but students and parents are cautioned these may **not** suffice for FHSAA or NCAA, eligibility requirements. All credits earned may be transferred to FSUS to be credited toward graduation requirements.

Academic acceleration attempts via Florida Virtual School (FLVS)/ MyDistrict Virtual, and other educational institutions or programs, are subject to approval by the principal and/or designee and the grade earned will be placed on the student's transcript or permanent academic record.

For non-promotional courses taken independently by the student, it is the student's responsibility, not Florida State University Schools', to meet all requirements set forth by FLVS/MyDistrict Virtual. (Example – Some of the courses offered by Florida Virtual School require the student to be certified by an outside agency in a particular performance skill.)

Upon completion of a course, it is the student's responsibility to provide the final grade report to school counselor or academic deans to ensure inclusion in the student's academic record. Only final grades for courses that have been previously approved by the school counselor or academic deans will be recorded.

Because FSUS schedules high school courses with State End of Course Exams as yearlong, full credit classes, a student attempting to earn initial credit in these courses through FLVS/MyDistrict Virtual must complete the entire course (semester 1 and semester 2) to satisfy the FSUS requirement and have the grade posted to his/her academic record.

Deleted: recover OR

At least one course within the 24 credits required in this subsection must be completed through online learning. However, an online or blended high school course taken during grades 6 through 8 fulfills this requirement. This requirement shall be met through an online course offered by the Florida Virtual School, an online course offered by the high school, or an online dual enrollment course offered pursuant to a district inter-institutional articulation agreement pursuant to s. 1007.235. A student who is enrolled in a full-time or part-time virtual instruction program under s. 1002.45 meets this requirement.

Adult Education Courses

High school students who are concurrently enrolled in the adult education secondary program may earn credits with administrator or designee approval which may be applied to requirements for graduation from Florida State University School. Courses may be taken for purposes of credit completion, acceleration, or remediation.

Advanced Placement

Advanced Placement (AP) is the enrollment of an eligible secondary student in an Advanced Placement course as described by the College Board. Post-secondary credit for an AP course shall be awarded to

students who score a minimum of 3 on a 5-point scale on the corresponding AP exam. Students shall be exempt from the payment of any fees (F.S. 1007.27). Students enrolled in AP courses are expected to take the AP exam. If a student chooses to take an AP exam without taking the course, he/she is responsible for the fee.

Early Admission Criteria to Colleges and Universities (1007.27) (s)

Early Admission is a form of dual enrollment through which eligible secondary students enroll fulltime in a post-secondary institution in courses that are creditable toward the high school diploma and the associate or baccalaureate degree. Students on Early Admission are registered with no schedule. Early Admission to Colleges and Universities allows the student to enroll full time in a college or university following the completion of grade 11 provided the student has an un-weighted grade point average of 3.0000 or above, is socially mature, has the joint approval of the high school principal and the college registrar, has the approval of his/her parents, and has the approval of the Director and the School Board. Full-time status is determined by the college or university and district course and graduation requirements.

GED Exit Option

The Performance-Based Exit Option Model formerly GED Exit Option will no longer be available to students of Florida State University School. It is important to note that a GED diploma is still an option for all students per section 1003.435, Florida Statutes.

Summer Session Enrollment

Students may enroll in Florida Virtual School, Adult Education correspondence courses and private school courses during the summer as available.

OTHER GRADUATION INFORMATION

Career education courses that satisfy high school credit requirements must:

- Include workforce and digital literacy skills and the integration of required course content with practical applications and designated coursework that results in one or more industry certifications or clearly articulated credit or advance standing in a two-year or four-year certificate or degree program, which may include high-school junior and senior year work-related internships or apprenticeships.
- The instructional methodology used in these courses must be comprised of authentic projects, problems and activities for contextually learning the academics.

Certificate of Completion

- A school district may award a certificate of completion to a student when the student earns the required 24 credits or the required 18 credits under the ACCEL option (s. 1002.3105[5], F.S) **but fails to**
 - pass the assessments required under 1008.22(3), F.S., or
 - achieve a 2.0 GPA.
- A student who is otherwise entitled to a certificate of completion may elect to remain in high school either as a full-time or part-time student for up to one additional year and receive special instruction designed to remedy his or her identified deficiencies.

GRADUATION CEREMONY

To participate in the high school graduation ceremony, a student must have met all of the requirements by the date established to determine graduation eligibility, and be in good standing.

Requirements for Participation

The FSUS administration reserves the right to deny the participation of any student in the graduation ceremony. Any student not classified as a senior by the beginning of the semester of graduation will not be allowed to participate in the graduation ceremony. Seniors who have not met all graduation requirements, prior to a date established by administration, will not be allowed to participate in the graduation ceremony. Seniors will not be able to participate in graduation ceremonies until all deficiencies and any related fees are paid.

In the event of a sustained medical event and at the principal's discretion, the principal may recommend to the director that a particular student be allowed to participate in the ceremony that has not satisfactorily completed all requirements. This student shall not receive an official diploma until all requirements have been met. The director's decision on the recommendation is final.

It is important for each student to recognize that participation in the graduation ceremony is an important privilege, but one that can be withdrawn by inappropriate conduct or other situations affecting "good standing". A student attending FSUS as a part of a recognized foreign exchange program may receive special dispensation to participate in the graduation ceremony at the recommendation of the principal and sustained by the director but the student will not be eligible for a regular high school diploma.

Graduation Plan

A written graduation plan will be completed and discussed with each potential graduate during the first quarter of the school year. A potential graduate is defined as a student able to complete ALL graduation requirements PRIOR to the beginning of the next school year. The student is notified during the first quarter of school as to his/her credit standing in order that he/she can plan for graduation activities. For transfer students, the graduation credit check should be completed as soon as records are received and evaluated by the school counselor or academic dean.

STATE UNIVERSITY AND COLLEGE ADMISSION AND BRIGHT FUTURES REQUIREMENTS

State University System (SUS) Admission Requirements	The Florida College System Admission Requirements	Bright Futures Scholarship Requirements for the High School Graduate (The Florida Legislature is authorized to change eligibility and funding)
<p>Admission into Florida’s public universities is competitive. Prospective students should complete a rigorous curriculum in high school and apply to more than one university to increase their chance for acceptance. To qualify to enter one of Florida’s public universities, a first-time-in-college student must meet the following minimum requirements:</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> • High school graduation with a standard diploma • Admission test scores • 16 credits of college preparatory academic courses • 4 English (3 with substantial writing) • 4 Mathematics (Algebra I level and above) • 3 Natural Science (2 with substantial lab) • 3 Social Science • 2 World Language (sequential, in the same language) • 2 approved electives <p>OR</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> • Be selected through a “student profile assessment” that considers other special factors (e.g., special talents) <p>OR</p> <p>Obtain an associate of arts degree from a Florida college.</p>	<p>To qualify to enter an associate degree program at one of Florida’s colleges, a student must:</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> • Graduate with a standard high school diploma <p>OR</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> • Earn a high school equivalency diploma <p>OR</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> • Have previously demonstrated competency in college credit postsecondary coursework <p>OR</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> • Earn a Postsecondary Education Readiness Test (PERT) eligible Certificate of Completion <p>AND</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> • Demonstrate achievement of college-level communication and computation skills (per standardized test scores to enroll in credit-bearing education courses) <p>For those students interested in non-degree certificate program or baccalaureate degree programs, please see an admissions counselor as requirements may vary.</p>	<p>Florida Academic Scholars/Florida Medallion Scholars must have:</p> <p>16 credits in college preparatory courses in the following areas:</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> • 4 English (3 with substantial writing) • 4 mathematics (Algebra I level and above) • 3 natural science (2 with lab component) • 3 social science • 2 foreign language (in the same language) <p>*Up to two additional credits from courses in the academic areas listed above and/or AP, IB, or AICE fine arts courses to raise the GPA</p> <p>*A 3.5 weighted GPA in the above courses; 100 hours community service <u>or 100 work hours</u>; and a best composite score of 1330 on the SAT Reasoning Test (based on the combined Critical Reading and Math sections only) or 29 on the ACT (excluding the writing section) to be a Florida Academic Scholar (FAS)</p> <p>*A 3.0 weighted GPA in the above courses; 75 hours community service <u>or 100 work hours</u>; and a minimum score of 1210 on the SAT or 25 on the ACT to be a Florida Medallion Scholar (FMS)</p>

<p>The 18 high school credits required for SUS admission are:</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> • 4 English (3 with substantial writing) • 4 mathematics (Algebra I and above) • 3 natural science (2 with lab component) • 3 social science • 2 foreign language (in the same language) • 2 approved electives (in certain combinations) • Students must meet with their school counselor to ensure that courses satisfy SUS admission requirements 	<p>The 18 high school credits recommended for admission to the Florida college system are:</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> • 4 English (3 with substantial writing) • 4 mathematics (Algebra I and above) • 3 natural science (2 with lab component) • 3 social science • 2 foreign language (in the same language) • 2 approved electives (in certain combinations) 	<p>Florida Gold Seal Vocational (GSV) Scholars must have:</p> <p>*16 credits in the following areas:</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> 4 English 4 mathematics (including Algebra I) 3 natural science 3 social science (United States history, world history, • United States government, and economics) 1 fine arts 1 physical education to include the integration of health 30 hours of community service *A 3.0 weighted GPA in above courses (for a four-year graduation program) *3 vocational job-preparatory or technology education credits in one vocational program with an un-weighted 3.5 GPA in those courses *A minimum section score listed below on <i>each</i> section of <i>either</i> the PERT, SAT, or ACT (<i>sections of different test types may not be combined.</i>) <p>PERT: Reading 106/ Writing 103/ Math 114</p> <p>SAT: Reading 24/Math 24/ Writing and Language 25</p> <p>ACT: English 17/Reading 19/Math 19</p>
---	--	---

EXCEPTIONAL STUDENT EDUCATION (ESE)

Promotion for Exceptional Students Pursuing Florida Standards

Consideration for promotion of ESE students will be based on promotion requirements as specified in the Student Progression Plan for general education students with accommodations as identified in the Individual Educational Plan (IEP).

Exceptional Students Education (ESE) and Section 504 Provisions

Consistent with the accountability requirements of Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA) and the Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement Act of 2004 (IDEA), Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the vast majority of students with disabilities in Florida are expected to: demonstrate mastery of the Florida Standards and Next Generation Sunshine State Standards, participate in statewide assessments, and graduate high school with a standard diploma. In order to achieve these expectations, students with disabilities must be provided access to the general curriculum to the maximum extent possible with appropriately designed instruction and accommodations. Any accommodations are intended for those students who would be denied meaningful participation in instruction and assessment because of their disability. Accommodations allow a student with a disability the same access to instruction and assessment as students without disabilities. Accommodations for instruction and assessment are determined at IEP meetings and indicated on the student's IEP. Appropriate accommodations for state and district assessments are determined for each student at the IEP meeting. The following guidelines will be considered when making individual accommodation decisions:

- Accommodations are adjustments made to the way skills and concepts are taught and assessed but do not affect the expected outcomes in relation to the Florida Standards and Next Generation Sunshine State Standards.
- Accommodations should facilitate an accurate demonstration of what the student knows or can do.
- Accommodations should remove or neutralize the limiting effects of the student's disability by altering the presentation, response, schedule, setting, use of assistive devices, or test administration in appropriate ways.
- Accommodations should not change the intent of the test; i.e., the educational goal or skill measured by the test.
- Accommodations should not be used to compensate for lack of achievement.
- Accommodations should not provide the student with an unfair advantage or interfere with the validity of the test. They must not change the underlying skills that are being measured by the test.
- Test accommodations must be the same or nearly the same as accommodations used by the student in completing the classroom instructional and assessment activities.
- Accommodations must be necessary to allow the student to demonstrate knowledge, ability, skill, or mastery required by the assessment.

Testing Accommodations

Rule [6A-1.0943, FAC] permits test accommodations for any student with a disability who has a current IEP or 504 Plan. Expanded accommodations on state/district assessments are authorized for students with disabilities through executive order. Allowable accommodations are detailed in the test administration manuals under the following categories:

- Flexible Presentation
- Flexible Responding
- Flexible Scheduling
- Flexible Setting
- Use of Assistive Technology

Parent Notification of Testing Accommodations

A parent must provide signed consent for a student to receive instructional accommodations and/or modifications that would not be permitted on the statewide assessments and must acknowledge in writing that he or she understands the implications of such accommodations.

Curriculum and Instruction (Exceptional Student Education)

- Free Appropriate Public Education Through Age 22 (FAPE 22)
Exceptional Education Students who have not earned a standard diploma remain eligible for educational services through the end of the school year in which they become twenty-two years old (IDEA.97-300.121 (a)) This includes students receiving a certificate of completion, special diploma, or a special certificate of completion. The educational and transition needs of these students will be identified in the IEP. These students are to be enrolled in grade 12 for FEFP purposes. Students in the FAPE 22 program may attend full-time or part-time.
- Grade Classification for ESE Students (5.35)
High school ESE students will be assigned to grades 10, 11 and 12 according to the requirements prescribed for general education students as specified in the Student Progression Plan.

Diploma and Certificate Options (ESE)

All ESE students must meet the district course and credit requirements. Basic, vocational and ESE content equivalent courses may be used to meet these requirements. Other ESE courses may be used as electives. Accommodations and/or modifications may be provided for exceptional students as specified in the IEP. Standard diploma requirements for academic or general education high school courses may not be modified (one cannot change curriculum frameworks or student standards) for students with disabilities if the courses are to be used to meet the graduation requirements for a standard diploma (6A-6.0312 (1)). Career and technical education courses may be modified for students with disabilities (6A-6.0312(2)). Modified career and technical education courses may be used to meet the requirements of a standard diploma. ESE students must meet the assessment and GPA requirements as specified for a standard diploma. Other options may include [state assessment](#) waivers for eligible students.

Deleted: FCAT /FSA

State-wide Testing Waiver Requirements (ESE)

The Enhanced New Needed Opportunity for Better Life and Education for Students with Disabilities (ENNOBLES) Act, addresses access to postsecondary education and meaningful careers for students with disabilities (F.S. 1007.02). For the purposes of this act, the term “student with disability” means any student who is documented as having mental retardation; a hearing impairment, including deafness: a speech or language impairment: a visual impairment including blindness: a serious emotional disturbance, including an emotional handicap: an orthopedic impairment: autism: a traumatic brain injury: or a specific learning disability, including, but not limited to dyslexia, dyscalculia, or developmental aphasia. (F.S. 1007.02 (2) The ENNOBLES Act also provides for the waiver of the [state testing](#) requirement for graduation with a standard diploma for certain students with disabilities as defined in FS 1007.02(2) who have met all other requirements for graduation with a standard diploma, except a passing score on the [state testing](#) (FS 1003.43 (11) (b)). Exceptional students eligible for consideration of the waiver are those:

Deleted: FCAT/FSA

Deleted: FCAT/FSA

- Identified as a student with a disability as defined in section 1007.02 (2)
- Who are currently seniors or students with disabilities who remain enrolled seeking a standard diploma who have an IEP and for whom the [state testing](#) is the graduation test
- Who have met the state’s graduation requirement of 24 academic credits and a 2.0 un-weighted cumulative grade point average (GPA) or higher for graduation with a standard diploma
- Who have demonstrated the knowledge, skills, and abilities required by the Grade 10 Florida Standards.

Deleted: FSA

- Who have taken the Grade 10 [state assessment](#) with appropriate allowable accommodations at least twice (for example, once in grade 10 and once in grade 11 and have participated in the March administration of the FSA during the senior year, or if not continuously enrolled in public school in Florida, have taken the [state assessment](#) at least once during each year of enrollment in grades 10, 11, or 12
- Who have participated in intensive remediation for [state assessment in Reading and/or Mathematics](#), if passing scores were not earned.
- For whom the IEP team determines that the [state assessment](#) cannot accurately measure the student’s abilities, even if all appropriate, allowable accommodations are used

Deleted: FSA

Deleted: FSA

Deleted: FSA

Deleted: FSA

Deleted: FSA

If there is sufficient evidence that the student has mastered the applicable Florida Standards, the IEP team may convene and determine whether or not the [state assessment](#) (or end-of-course assessment) is an accurate measure of the student’s ability. Based on the outcome, the [state assessment](#) (or end-of-course assessment) requirement may be waived for either the reading portion, the mathematics portion, or both portions of the test, and the student may graduate with a standard diploma.

Deleted: FCAT/FSA

Deleted: FCAT/FSA

An FSA waiver may be used only for the traditional 24-credit graduation program. The [state testing](#) wavier is not available to students in any of the three-year, 18-credit options.

Deleted: FSA

Certificate of Completion Criteria (ESE)

Exceptional students may receive a certificate of completion if they meet the requirements listed under High School Certificate of Completion in the Student Progression Plan.

Report Cards and Grading (ESE)

Students in all ESE programs shall receive standard report cards. The district-designed report card shall be used to report progress to parents of students. For students receiving standard report cards, grades will be determined according to procedures for basic education students as outlined in the Student Progression Plan.

Progress Reports/Parent Notification (ESE)

Parents will receive a report on the progress of the ESE student toward achieving IEP goals at least as often as parents of general education students receive progress reports. This is in addition to academic progress reports. (IDEA 97-300.347 (a) (7) (ii) (6A-6-03028(7) (g)). Parent(s) must be notified in writing at any time during a grading period when it is apparent that the student may fail or is doing unsatisfactory work in any course or grade assignment. No student shall receive an unsatisfactory conduct grade if parents have not been notified.

Other Programs (ESE)

Speech therapy programs are pull-out programs designed to reinforce or enhance a student's ability to profit from instruction. Attendance in these programs will not affect the 135-hour minimum course attendance requirements for basic, CTE or ESE courses.

STATUTORY AUTHORITY

If a policy or procedure expressly or directly conflicts with Florida Statute or School Board Rule, Florida Statute and/or State Board of Education Rule shall control.

Page 6: [1] Deleted Megan Brink 3/2/23 6:34:00 PM

Page 15: [2] Deleted Amber Helms 1/17/23 9:35:00 AM

Page 20: [3] Deleted Lisa Kelley 1/20/23 1:43:00 PM

Page 20: [4] Deleted Lisa Kelley 1/20/23 2:00:00 PM

2022-2023 FSUS School Board Members

Community Representatives

Dr. Jimmie Davis

Term: 2021-2023

Darryl Marshall

Term: 2020 – 2022; 2022 - 2024

Dr. Rosezetta Bobo

Term: 2021-2023

FSU Representatives

Toby Park-Gaghan

Term: 2022-2024

Katie Peters

Term: 2022-2024

Dr. Ruth Storm

Term: 2018-2019 (replaced Kathy Clark); 2019-2021; 2021-2023

Dr. Sara Scott-Shields

Term: 2016-2017 (replaced Eric Algoe); 2017-2019; 2019-2021; 2021-2023

Parent Representatives

Sarah Chason

Term: 2022-2024

Carlos Villa, Chair

Term: 2019-2021; 2021-2023

Dr. Brandon Bowden

Term: 2021-2023

St. Joe Representative

TBD

Appointment is annual by St. Joe.